UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

WASHINGTON, DC 20549

FORM 10-Q

(Mark One) ☑ OUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO S	ECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF	THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
	rterly period ended Septen	
•	OR	,
☐ TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO S	ECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF	THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
For the transition p	period from	to
Com	mission File Number: 001-	42298
	dardAero,	
(Exact Name	of Registrant as Specified	in its Charter)
Delaware (State or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization)		30-1138150 (I.R.S. Employer Identification No.)
6710 North Scottsdale Road, Suite 25	0	
Scottsdale, Arizona (Address of principal executive offices)		85253 (Zip Code)
	(480) 377-3100	
(Registrant's	telephone number, includ	ing area code)
(Farmar name farmar add	N/A	if shanged since last variout)
	dress and former fiscal year, i	-
Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) of the		
Title of each class	Trading Symbol(s)	Name of each exchange on which registered
Common stock, par value \$0.01 per share	SARO	New York Stock Exchange
Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such st to such filing requirements for the past 90 days. Yes	norter period that the registrant	be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has s Rule 405 of Regulation S-T ($\S232.405$ of this chapter) duri submit such files). Yes \boxtimes No \square	2 2	interactive Data File required to be submitted pursuant to r for such shorter period that the registrant was required to
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a l company, or an emerging growth company. See the definit "emerging growth company" in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange	ions of "large accelerated filer,"	erated filer, a non-accelerated filer, smaller reporting "accelerated filer," "smaller reporting company," and
Large accelerated filer Non-accelerated filer Emerging growth company □		Accelerated filer □ Smaller reporting company □
If an emerging growth company indicate by check	1:04 : 41 1 4	1 1 . 11. 12 . 10 . 11
with any new or revised financial accounting standards pro	•	ed not to use the extended transition period for complying) of the Exchange Act. \square
0 00 1 2	vided pursuant to Section 13(a)) of the Exchange Act. □

TABLE OF CONTENTS

		Page
GLOSSARY		1
FORWARD-	LOOKING STATEMENTS	3
PART I	FINANCIAL INFORMATION	
Item 1.	<u>Financial Statements (unaudited)</u>	4
Item 2.	Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations	33
Item 3.	Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk	46
Item 4.	Controls and Procedures	47
PART II	OTHER INFORMATION	
Item 1.	<u>Legal Proceedings</u>	49
Item 1A.	Risk Factors	49
Item 2.	<u>Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds</u>	49
Item 3.	<u>Defaults Upon Senior Securities</u>	49
Item 4.	Mine Safety Disclosures	49
Item 5.	Other information	49
Item 6.	<u>Exhibits</u>	50
	<u>Signatures</u>	51

GLOSSARY

Unless the context otherwise requires or we otherwise state, references in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q ("Quarterly Report") to:

- the term "Acquisition" refers to the acquisition by Dynasty Acquisition Co., Inc., pursuant to that certain stock purchase agreement as amended, restated, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time, dated December 18, 2018, of all of the equity interests of StandardAero Holding Corp., a Delaware corporation;
- the term "Canadian Borrower" refers to Standard Aero Limited Standaero Limitee (as successor in interest to 1199169 B.C. Unlimited Liability Company) that is the indirect wholly owned subsidiary of the Company;
- the term "Carlyle" refers to those certain investment funds of The Carlyle Group Inc. and its affiliates;
- the term "Dynasty Acquisition" refers to Dynasty Acquisition Co., Inc., a Delaware corporation that is the indirect wholly owned subsidiary of the Company;
- the term "Exchange Act" refers to the U.S. Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, as amended;
- the term "GAAP" refers to the generally accepted accounting principles in the United States;
- the term "GIC" refers to GIC Private Limited;
- the term "March Secondary Offering" refers to the public offering of 36,000,000 shares of common stock by the selling stockholders at a price to the public of \$28.00 per share, which was completed in March 2025;
- the term "May Secondary Offering" refers to the public offering of 34,500,000 shares of common stock
 by the selling stockholders (including the full exercise by the underwriters of their option to purchase up
 to an additional 4,500,000 shares) at a price to the public of \$28.00 per share, which was completed in
 May 2025;
- the term "New 2024 Revolving Credit Facility" refers to a senior secured multicurrency revolving credit
 facility available to the U.S. Borrower in an aggregate principal amount of up to \$750.0 million (of
 which up to \$150.0 million is available for the issuance of letters of credit);
- the term "New 2024 Term Loan B-1 Facility" refers to a senior secured dollar term loan B facility, incurred by the U.S. Borrower in an aggregate principal amount of \$1,630.0 million;
- the term "New 2024 Term Loan B-2 Facility" refers to a senior secured dollar term loan B facility incurred by the Canadian Borrower in an aggregate principal amount of \$620.0 million;
- the term "New 2024 Term Loan Facilities" means, together, the New 2024 Term Loan B-2 Facility and the New 2024 Term Loan B-1 Facility;
- the term "New Credit Agreement" refers to that certain New Credit Agreement (as amended, restated, modified and/or supplemented from time to time), dated as of October 31, 2024, governing the New Senior Secured Credit Facilities;
- the term "New Senior Secured Credit Facilities" refers to, collectively, (i) the New 2024 Term Loan Facilities and (ii) the New 2024 Revolving Credit Facility;
- the term "Prior 2023 Term B-1 Loan Facility" refers to the senior secured dollar term loan B facility in an original aggregate principal amount of \$1,802.5 million;
- the term "Prior 2023 Term B-1 Loans" refers to the senior secured dollar term loans incurred under the Prior 2023 Term B-1 Loan Facility by Dynasty Acquisition pursuant to the Prior Credit Agreement;
- the term "Prior 2023 Term B-2 Loan Facility" refers to the senior secured dollar term loan B facility in an original aggregate principal amount of \$772.5 million;

- the term "Prior 2023 Term B-2 Loans" refers to the senior secured dollar term loans incurred under the Prior 2023 Term B-2 Loan Facility by the Canadian Borrower, pursuant to the Prior Credit Agreement;
- the term "Prior 2023 Term Loan Facilities" refers, collectively, to (i) the Prior 2023 Term B-1 Loan Facility and (ii) the Prior 2023 Term B-2 Loan Facility;
- the term "Prior 2023 Term Loans" refers, collectively, to (i) the Prior 2023 Term B-1 Loans and (ii) the Prior 2023 Term B-2 Loans;
- the term "Prior 2023 Revolving Credit Facility" refers to the senior secured multicurrency revolving
 credit facility in an aggregate principal amount of up to \$150.0 million (of which up to \$75.0 million is
 available for the issuance of letters of credit);
- the term "Prior 2024 Term B-1 Loan Facility" refers to the senior secured dollar term loan B facility in an original aggregate principal amount of approximately \$1,993.5 million;
- the term "Prior 2024 Term Loan B-2 Facility" refers to the senior secured dollar term loan B facility in an original aggregate principal amount of approximately \$768.6 million;
- the term "Prior 2024 Term Loan Facilities" refers collectively to the Prior 2024 Term B-1 Loan Facility and the 2024 Term Loan B-2 Facility;
- the term "Prior ABL Credit Agreement" refers to that certain ABL Credit Agreement (as amended, restated, modified and/or supplemented from time to time), dated as of April 4, 2019, governing the Prior ABL Credit Facility;
- the term "Prior ABL Credit Facility" refers to the senior secured asset-based multicurrency revolving credit facilities in an aggregate principal amount of up to \$400.0 million;
- the term "Prior Credit Agreement" refers to that certain Credit Agreement (as amended, restated, modified and/or supplemented from time to time), dated as of April 4, 2019, governing the Prior Credit Facilities;
- the term "Prior Credit Facilities" refers, collectively, to (i) the Prior 2024 Term Loan Facilities and (ii) the Prior 2023 Revolving Credit Facility;
- the term "Prior Indenture" refers to that certain indenture (as amended, restated, modified and/or supplemented from time to time), dated as of April 4, 2019, by and among Dynasty Acquisition, as issuer, the guarantors party thereto and U.S. Bank National Association, as trustee, governing the Prior Senior Notes;
- the term "Prior Senior Notes" refers to the \$475.5 million aggregate principal amount of Senior Unsecured PIK Toggle Notes due 2027 issued by Dynasty Acquisition pursuant to the Prior Indenture;
- the term "Prior Senior Secured Credit Agreements" refers, collectively, to (i) the Prior Credit Agreement and (ii) the Prior ABL Credit Agreement;
- the term "Prior Senior Secured Credit Facilities" refers, collectively, to (i) the Prior Credit Facilities and (ii) the Prior ABL Credit Facility;
- the term "SEC" refers to the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission;
- the term "Securities Act" refers to the U.S. Securities Act of 1933, as amended;
- the term "U.S. Borrower" refers to Dynasty Acquisition Co., Inc.; and
- the terms "we," "us," "our," "its" and the "Company" refer to StandardAero, Inc., a Delaware corporation, and its consolidated subsidiaries.

Certain monetary amounts, percentages and other figures included in this Quarterly Report have been subject to rounding adjustments. Accordingly, figures shown as totals in certain tables and charts may not be the arithmetic aggregation of the figures that precede them, and figures expressed as percentages in the text may not total 100% or, as applicable, when aggregated may not be the arithmetic aggregation of the percentages that precede them.

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Quarterly Report contains forward-looking statements. We intend such forward-looking statements to be covered by the safe harbor provisions for forward-looking statements contained in Section 27A of the Securities Act and Section 21E of the Exchange Act. All statements other than statements of historical facts contained in this Quarterly Report may be forward-looking statements. Statements regarding our future results of operations and financial position, business strategy, and plans and objectives of management for future operations, including, among others, expected growth, future capital expenditures, and debt service obligations are forward-looking statements. In some cases, you can identify forward-looking statements by terms such as "may," "will," "should," "expects," "plans," "anticipates," "could," "intends," "targets," "projects," "contemplates," "believes," "estimates," "predicts," "potential" or "continue" or the negative of these terms or other similar expressions.

The forward-looking statements in this Quarterly Report are only predictions. We have based these forward-looking statements largely on our current expectations and projections about future events and financial trends that we believe may affect our business, financial condition and results of operations, forward-looking statements involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other important factors that may cause our actual results, performance or achievements to be materially different from any future results, performance or achievements expressed or implied by the forward-looking statements. We believe that these factors include, risks related to conditions that affect the commercial and business aviation industries; decreases in budget, spending or outsourcing by our military end-users; risks from any supply chain disruptions or loss of key suppliers; increased costs of labor, equipment, raw materials, freight and utilities due to inflation; future outbreaks of infectious diseases; risks related to competition in the market in which we participate; loss of an OEM authorization or license; risks related to a significant portion of our revenue being derived from a small number of customers; our ability to remediate effectively the material weaknesses identified in our internal control over financial reporting; our ability to respond to changes in GAAP; our or our third-party partners' failure to protect confidential information; data security incidents or disruptions to our IT systems and capabilities; our ability to comply with laws relating to the handling of personal information; changes to, and the impact of, U.S. tariff and import/export regulations; failure to maintain our regulatory approvals; risks relating to our operations outside of North America; failure to comply with government procurement laws and regulations; any work stoppage, hiring, retention or succession issues with our senior management team and employees; any strains on our resources due to the requirements of being a public company; risks related to our substantial indebtedness; risks related to the ownership of our common stock, including the fact that Carlyle owns a significant amount of our voting power; and other factors set forth under "Risk Factors" elsewhere in this Quarterly Report and in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2024 (the "2024 Form 10-K").

Because forward-looking statements are inherently subject to risks and uncertainties, some of which cannot be predicted or quantified, you should not rely on these forward-looking statements as predictions of future events. The events and circumstances reflected in our forward-looking statements may not be achieved or occur and actual results could differ materially from those projected in the forward-looking statements. These statements are inherently uncertain, and investors are cautioned not to unduly rely upon these statements.

You should read this Quarterly Report and the documents that we reference in this Quarterly Report and have filed as exhibits to this Quarterly Report with the understanding that our actual future results, levels of activity, performance and achievements may be materially different from what we expect. We qualify all of our forward-looking statements by these cautionary statements.

These forward-looking statements speak only as of the date of this Quarterly Report. Except as required by applicable law, we do not plan to publicly update or revise any forward-looking statements contained in this Quarterly Report, whether as a result of any new information, future events or otherwise.

PART I—FINANCIAL INFORMATION

ITEM 1. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED)

Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets (unaudited) as of September 30, 2025 and December 31, 2024	5
Condensed Consolidated Statements of Operations (unaudited) for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2025 and	6
<u>2024</u>	U
Condensed Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income (unaudited) for the three and nine months ended September	
<u>30, 2025 and 2024</u>	7
Condensed Consolidated Statements of Stockholders' Equity (unaudited) for the three and nine months ended September 30.	0
<u>2025 and 2024</u>	0
Condensed Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows (unaudited) for the nine months ended September 30, 2025 and 2024	9
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (unaudited)	10

STANDARDAERO, INC. CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(unaudited) (In thousands, except share figures)

	S	eptember 30, 2025	December 31, 2024		
ASSETS					
Current assets:					
Cash	\$	97,503	\$	102,581	
Accounts receivable (less allowance for expected credit losses of \$14,157 and \$15,455, respectively)		703,248		580,668	
Contract assets, net		1,125,500		915,200	
Inventories		956,731		847,018	
Prepaid expenses and other current assets		50,292		29,707	
Income tax receivable		28,004		9,960	
Total current assets		2,961,278		2,485,134	
Property, plant and equipment, net		579,738		568,607	
Operating lease right of use asset, net		221,057		172,206	
Customer relationships, net		941,673		1,004,701	
Other intangible assets, net		256,482		291,487	
Goodwill		1,684,255		1,685,970	
Other assets		3,695		4,417	
Deferred income tax assets		1,079		1,079	
Total assets	\$	6,649,257	\$	6,213,601	
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY				,	
Current liabilities:					
Accounts payable	\$	711,693	\$	645,701	
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities		92,831		99,572	
Accrued employee costs		80,527		79,134	
Operating lease liabilities, current		20,563		17,663	
Due to related parties		870		1,345	
Contract liabilities		428,658		400,025	
Income taxes payable, current		· —		6,655	
Long-term debt, current portion		23,482		23,449	
Total current liabilities		1,358,624		1,273,544	
Long-term debt		2,305,360		2,207,977	
Operating lease liabilities, non-current		211,425		164,224	
Deferred income tax liabilities		170,286		169,824	
Other non-current liabilities		18,614		24,628	
Total liabilities		4,064,309		3,840,197	
Commitments and contingencies (Note 11)					
Stockholders' equity					
Common stock (\$0.01 par value, 3,500,000,000 shares authorized; 334,470,264 and 334,461,630					
shares issued and outstanding as of September 30, 2025 and December 31, 2024)		3,345		3,345	
Preferred stock (\$0.01 par value, 100,000,000 shares authorized; no shares were issued)		_		_	
Additional paid-in capital		3,954,819		3,944,802	
Accumulated deficit		(1,364,545)		(1,563,321)	
Accumulated other comprehensive loss		(8,671)		(11,422)	
Total stockholders' equity		2,584,948		2,373,404	
Total liabilities and stockholders' equity	\$	6,649,257	\$	6,213,601	

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements.

STANDARDAERO, INC. CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

(unaudited) (In thousands, except per share figures)

	Three Months Ended September 30,			 Nine Mon Septem		
	2025	202	4	2025		2024
Revenue	\$ 1,497,962	\$1,244	,627	\$ 4,462,493	\$	3,827,548
Cost of revenue	1,274,803	1,058	,396	3,785,429		3,275,300
Selling, general and administrative expense	60,944	62	,895	201,421		171,744
Amortization of intangible assets	24,873	23	,965	73,808		70,550
Acquisition costs	_	1	,323	_		1,323
Operating income	137,342	98	,048	401,835		308,631
Interest expense	44,566	79	,898	132,192		235,496
Refinancing costs	_	1	,503	_		6,441
Loss on debt extinguishment	_		_	_		3,577
Income before income taxes	92,776	16	,647	269,643		63,117
Income tax expense	24,656		211	70,867		38,090
Net income	\$ 68,120	\$ 16	,436	\$ 198,776	\$	25,027
Earnings per share:						
Basic	\$ 0.21	\$	0.06	\$ 0.61	\$	0.09
Diluted	\$ 0.20	\$	0.06	\$ 0.59	\$	0.09
Weighted-average common shares outstanding						
Basic	328,453	275	,175	328,446		275,175
Diluted	334,407	275	,175	334,287		275,175

 $\label{thm:companying} \textit{The accompanying notes are an integral part of the unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements.}$

STANDARDAERO, INC. CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (unaudited) (In thousands)

		Three Mon Septem			Nine Months Ended September 30,			
	2025 2024				2025		2024	
Net income	\$	68,120	\$	16,436	\$	198,776	\$	25,027
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax:								
Unrealized income (loss) on cash flow hedge, net of income tax expense (benefit) of (\$557) and (\$2,603) for the three months ended September 30, 2025 and 2024, respectively, and (\$192) and \$105 for the nine months ended September 30, 2025 and 2024, respectively		(1,555)		(9,954)		(927)		311
Cash flow hedge gain (loss) reclassified to the statement of operations, net of income tax expense (benefit) of (\$259) and \$532, for the three months ended September 30, 2025 and 2024, respectively, and (\$1,085) and \$2,269 for the nine months ended September 30, 2025 and 2024, respectively		958		(1,923)		3,678		(8,341)
Foreign currency translation adjustment		_		475		_		153
Total other comprehensive income (loss)		(597)		(11,402)		2,751		(7,877)
Comprehensive income	\$	67,523	\$	5,034	\$	201,527	\$	17,150

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements.

STANDARDAERO, INC. CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY (unaudited)

(In thousands, except share figures)

			For th	e ni	ne months ende	d S	eptember 30, 202	25			
	Common Stock Number Par of Shares Value			Additional Paid-in Capital		Accumulated Deficit		Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss)		Total nareholders' Equity	
Balance as of December 31, 2024	334,461,630	\$	3,345	\$	3,944,802	\$	(1,563,321)	\$	(11,422)	\$	2,373,404
Net income	_		_		_		62,943		_		62,943
Share based compensation	_		_		2,045		_		_		2,045
Other comprehensive loss, net	_		_				_		(424)		(424)
Balance as of March 31, 2025	334,461,630	\$	3,345	\$	3,946,847	\$	(1,500,378)	\$	(11,846)	\$	2,437,968
Net income			_		_		67,713		_		67,713
Vesting of restricted stock	8,634		_		_		_		_		_
Share based compensation	_		_		3,830		_		_		3,830
Other comprehensive income, net			_		_		_		3,772		3,772
Balance as of June 30, 2025	334,470,264	\$	3,345	\$	3,950,677	\$	(1,432,665)	\$	(8,074)	\$	2,513,283
Net income	_		_		_		68,120		_		68,120
Vesting of restricted stock	_		_		_		_		_		_
Share based compensation	_		_		4,142		_		_		4,142
Other comprehensive loss, net	_		_		_		_		(597)		(597)
Balance as of September 30, 2025	334,470,264	\$	3,345	\$	3,954,819	\$	(1,364,545)	\$	(8,671)	\$	2,584,948

			For th	e nir	e months ende	d S	eptember 30, 202	24		For the nine months ended September 30, 2024										
	Common Stock Number Par of Shares Value		Par	_ Additional Paid-in Capital			Accumulated Deficit		Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss)		Total hareholders' Equity									
Balance as of December 31, 2023	281,211,630	\$	2,812	\$	2,725,157	\$	(1,574,295)	\$	(6,962)	\$	1,146,712									
Net income	_				_		3,187		_		3,187									
Other comprehensive income, net of tax			_	_	_	_			2,795		2,795									
Balance as of March 31, 2024	281,211,630	\$	2,812	\$	2,725,157	\$	(1,571,108)	\$	(4,167)	\$	1,152,694									
Net income	_		_		_		5,404		_		5,404									
Other comprehensive income, net of tax	_		_		_		_		730		730									
Balance as of June 30, 2024	281,211,630	\$	2,812	\$	2,725,157	\$	(1,565,704)	\$	(3,437)	\$	1,158,828									
Net income	_		_		_		16,436		_		16,436									
Other comprehensive loss, net of tax			_		_				(11,402)		(11,402)									
Balance as of September 30, 2024	281,211,630	\$	2,812	\$	2,725,157	\$	(1,549,268)	\$	(14,839)	\$	1,163,862									

 $\label{thm:companying} \textit{The accompanying notes are an integral part of the unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements.}$

STANDARDAERO, INC. CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (unaudited) (In thousands)

		tember 30,				
		2025		2024		
Operating activities		100 776	Φ.	25.027		
Net income	\$	198,776	\$	25,027		
Adjustments to reconcile net loss from operations to net cash provided by operating activities:						
Depreciation and amortization		145,329		140,021		
Amortization of deferred finance charges and discounts		4,912		9,989		
Amortization of loss on derivative instruments		_		(304)		
Amortization of interest cap premiums		8,287		7,078		
Payment of interest rate cap premiums		(8,332)		(7,044)		
Stock compensation expense		10,017		_		
Loss on debt extinguishment		_		3,577		
Loss (gain) from disposals, net		2,766		(17)		
Non-cash lease expense		1,268		1,376		
Deferred income taxes		(767)		(9,248)		
Foreign exchange gain, net		(629)		(207)		
Changes in operating assets and liabilities, net of effect of acquisitions:						
Accounts receivable, net		(122,580)		(98,898)		
Contract assets, net		(210,300)		1,749		
Inventories, net		(109,713)		(69,437)		
Prepaid expenses and other current assets		(21,150)		(10,041)		
Accounts payable, accrued expenses and other current liabilities		92,353		54,271		
Contract liabilities		28,633		(34,538)		
Due to/from related parties		(475)		138		
Income taxes payable and receivable		(24,699)		(45,511)		
Net cash used in operating activities		(6,304)		(32,019)		
Investing activities						
Acquisitions, net of cash and other		1,285		(114,074)		
Purchase of property, plant and equipment		(66,733)		(70,422)		
Payments for purchase of intangible assets		(30,000)		(214)		
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment		4,341		571		
Net cash used in investing activities		(91,107)		(184,139)		
Financing activities						
Proceeds from long-term debt		545,000		765,000		
Repayment of long-term debt		(452,573)		(555,032)		
Payment of deferred financing charges		_		(391)		
Repayments of long-term agreements		(1,503)		(466)		
Net cash provided by financing activities		90,924		209,111		
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash		1,409		330		
Net decrease in cash		(5,078)		(6,717)		
Cash at beginning of the period		102,581		57,982		
Cash at end of the period	\$	97,503	\$	51,265		
Supplemental cash flow information:	<u> </u>	77,000	<u> </u>	21,200		
Supplemental disclosure of non-cash investing activities:						
Contingent consideration for acquisition of ATI	\$	_	\$	15,150		
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment, liability incurred but not paid		(1,185)		_		

 $\label{thm:companying} \textit{The accompanying notes are an integral part of the unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements.}$

STANDARDAERO, INC. NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (unaudited)

NOTE 1: NATURE OF OPERATIONS AND BASIS OF PRESENTATION

Nature of Business

StandardAero, Inc. (the "Company") was incorporated on September 5, 2018, in the state of Delaware and is an independent provider of aftermarket services for fixed and rotary wing aircraft gas turbine engines and auxiliary power units ("APUs") to the commercial, business and military aircraft markets. The Company also provides aftermarket and upgrade services for business aviation and helicopter airframes and avionics, providing customers within those markets with comprehensive value-added solutions.

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America ("U.S. GAAP") and include the accounts of StandardAero, Inc. (formerly Dynasty Parent Co., Inc.) and its subsidiaries.

Authorized Shares

On September 20, 2024, the Company amended its certificate of incorporation to increase the number of authorized voting common stock from 5,000,000 to 3,500,000,000 and authorized non-voting common stock from 100,000 to 70,000,000. Accordingly, the authorized share amounts disclosed in the consolidated balance sheets have been adjusted to retroactively reflect this change.

Corporate Restructuring and Restructuring Transactions

In connection with and prior to the completion of the Company's initial public offering (the "IPO") of its shares of common stock, \$0.01 par value per share ("Common Stock"), the Company effected certain restructuring transactions. These restructuring transactions consisted of (i) the 103-for-one forward stock split of the Company's Common Stock effected on September 20, 2024, (ii) the distribution to former holders of Class A-1 Units and Class A-2 Units of Dynasty Parent Holdings, L.P. an aggregate of 275,053,375 shares of the Company's Common Stock (of which 8,157 were restricted shares), and to holders of Class B Units of Dynasty Parent Holdings, L.P. an aggregate of 6,158,255 shares of the Company's Common Stock (of which 6,028,394 were restricted shares) and (iii) the liquidation and dissolution of Dynasty Parent Holdings, L.P. (collectively, the "Restructuring Transactions"). Immediately following these Restructuring Transactions, 281,211,630 shares of our Common Stock were issued and outstanding.

Initial Public Offering

On October 2, 2024, the Company completed the IPO at a price to the public of \$24.00 per share. The offering included 69,000,000 shares of Common Stock, of which, the Company issued and sold 53,250,000 shares and the selling stockholders sold 15,750,000 shares, including 9,000,000 shares issued pursuant to the full exercise of the underwriters' option to purchase additional shares from the selling stockholders. The shares of Common Stock sold in the IPO were registered under the Securities Act pursuant to a Registration Statement on Form S-1, which was declared effective by the SEC on October 1, 2024. The IPO generated net proceeds from the primary issuance of shares of \$1,202.8 million after deducting underwriting discounts and commissions of approximately \$67.1 million and estimated offering expenses of \$8.1 million.

March Secondary Offering

In March 2025, two of the Company's stockholders (the "Selling Stockholders"), affiliates of The Carlyle Group Inc. ("Carlyle") and GIC Private Limited ("GIC"), completed a public offering of an aggregate of 36,000,000 shares of Common Stock at a price to the public of \$28.00 per share. The Selling Stockholders received all of the net proceeds from this offering. No shares were sold by the Company.

May Secondary Offering

In May 2025, the Selling Stockholders completed a public offering of an aggregate of 34,500,000 shares of Common Stock (including the full exercise by the underwriters of their option to purchase up to an additional 4,500,000 shares) at a price to the public of \$28.00 per share. The Selling Stockholders received all of the net proceeds from this offering. No shares were sold by the Company. As of September 30, 2025 Carlyle and GIC own approximately 45.6% and 10.3% of the Company's outstanding Common Stock, respectively.

NOTE 2: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements - Not Yet Adopted

In September 2025, the Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") issued Accounting Standard Update ("ASU") 2025-06, Targeted Improvements to the Accounting for Internal-Use Software (Subtopic 350-40). This amendment modernizes the accounting guidance of how software is developed by eliminating project stages from capitalization criteria. The new standard is effective for annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2027 and interim periods within those annual reporting periods. The standard allows for prospective, modified, or retrospective transition. Early adoption is permitted. The Company is currently evaluating the impacts of adopting this guidance on its consolidated financial statement disclosures.

In November 2024, the FASB issued ASU 2024-03, "Income Statement (Topic 220): Disaggregation of Income Statement Expenses" which requires additional disclosures of certain amounts included in the expense captions presented on the Statement of Operations as well as disclosures about selling expenses. The ASU is effective on a prospective basis, with the option for retrospective application, for annual periods beginning after December 15, 2026, and interim reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2027, and early adoption is permitted. The Company is currently evaluating the impacts of adopting this guidance on its consolidated financial statement disclosures.

In December 2023, the Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") issued ASU 2023-09, Income Taxes (Topic 740): Improvements to Income Tax Disclosures, to enhance the transparency and decision usefulness of income tax disclosures primarily related to the tax rate reconciliation and income taxes paid information. For public companies the amendments in this ASU are effective for annual periods beginning after December 15, 2024 and for all other entities the amendments are effective for annual periods beginning after December 15, 2025. The amendments should be applied on a prospective basis. Early adoption and retrospective application are permitted. The Company is currently evaluating the impacts of adopting this guidance on its financial statement disclosures.

Other new pronouncements issued, but not effective until after September 30, 2025, are not expected to have a significant impact on the Company's results of operations, financial condition, or liquidity.

NOTE 3: REVENUE RECOGNITION

Disaggregated revenue

The following table summarizes total revenue by the Company's segments:

	T	hree months end	ed Se	ptember 30,	Nine months ended September 30,				
		2025	2024			2025	2024		
		(in thou	sands	5)	(in thousands)				
Revenue:									
Engine Services	\$	1,322,185	\$	1,090,309	\$	3,941,175	\$	3,399,162	
Component Repair Services		175,777		154,318		521,318		428,386	
Total revenue	\$	1,497,962	\$	1,244,627	\$	4,462,493	\$	3,827,548	

The following table presents revenues from customers that contributed to more than 10% of revenues:

	Three months ended	September 30,	Nine months ended September 30,					
	2025	2024	2025	2024				
Customer A	14.3%	21.4%	15.3%	22.2%				

The following table presents revenues from external customers by end market:

	T	hree months end	led Se	ptember 30,	Nine months ended September 30,				
		2025	2024			2025		2024	
		(in thou	isands,)		(in thousands)			
Commercial Aerospace	\$	848,604	\$	720,647	\$	2,603,552	\$	2,236,718	
Military & Helicopter		273,229		225,596		803,052		703,548	
Business Aviation		324,357		253,317		907,335		779,530	
Other		51,772		45,067		148,554		107,752	
	\$	1,497,962	\$	1,244,627	\$	4,462,493	\$	3,827,548	

Contract assets and liabilities

Contract assets reflect revenue recognized and performance obligations satisfied in advance of customer billing or reimbursable costs related to a specific contract. Contract liabilities relate to payments received in advance of the satisfaction of performance under the contract. The Company receives payments from customers based on the terms established in the Company's contracts. The following table provides information about contract assets and contract liabilities from contracts with customers:

	Sept	ember 30, 2025	1	December 31, 2024	
	(in thousands)				
Contract assets	\$	1,126,019	\$	915,940	
Less: allowance for credit loss		(519)		(740)	
Contract assets, net	\$	1,125,500	\$	915,200	
Contract liabilities	\$	428,658	\$	400,025	

Changes in contract assets and contract liabilities primarily result from the timing difference between the Company's performance of services and payments from customers. The Company recognized revenue that was included in the beginning of period contract liability balance of approximately \$420.2 million and \$400.0 million for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2025, respectively, and \$276.7 million and \$355.7 million for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2024, respectively.

Remaining performance obligations

As of September 30, 2025, the Company had approximately \$325.1 million of remaining performance obligations, which primarily relate to the Company's engine utilization contracts that are satisfied over multiple years. Of this amount, the Company expects approximately 30% to be satisfied over the next two years and the remainder thereafter. The expected timing of the satisfaction of performance obligations is dependent on the timing of the customer's maintenance requirements and as such, the timing of the revenue recognition is subject to estimation uncertainty. The Company excludes from its remaining performance obligations balance the value of remaining performance obligations for its fixed price and time & material contracts, as the performance obligations for these contracts generally have an original expected duration of one year or less.

NOTE 4: EARNINGS PER SHARE

As a result of the 103-for-one stock split and the Restructuring Transactions in 2024, the 281,211,630 shares of the Company's Common Stock held were distributed to former holders of Class A-1 Units and Class A-2 Units of Dynasty Parent Holdings, L.P. in an aggregate of 275,053,375 shares of Common Stock (of which 8,157 were restricted shares), and also to holders of Class B Units of Dynasty Parent Holdings, L.P. in an aggregate of 6,158,255 shares of Common Stock (of which 6,028,394 were restricted shares). For purposes of the computation of earnings (loss) per share this distribution represented a net 100.79-for-one stock split of the Company's Common Stock which is retroactively adjusted for all periods presented.

The following table summarizes the computation of basic and diluted net income per share attributable to the stockholders:

	Th	Three months ended September 30,		1	Nine months end	ed Sep	l September 30,	
		2025	2024			2025		2024
			(in	thousands, excep	t per s	hare amounts)		
Numerator for earnings per share:								
Net income	\$	68,120	\$	16,436	\$	198,776	\$	25,027
Denominator for earnings per share:								
Weighted average common shares - basic		328,453		275,175		328,446		275,175
Dilutive effect of stock options and restricted stock awards		5,954		_		5,841		_
Weighted average shares - diluted		334,407		275,175		334,287		275,175
Earnings per share:								
Basic earnings per share	\$	0.21	\$	0.06	\$	0.61	\$	0.09
Diluted earnings per share	\$	0.20	\$	0.06	\$	0.59	\$	0.09

The Company has 5,903,778 contingently issuable shares of Common Stock that are issuable upon the Company's completion of a liquidity event, which has not occurred as of September 30, 2025. These shares are excluded from weighted average common shares-basic, but included in the calculation of the dilutive effect of stock options and restricted stock awards. Anti-dilutive shares of 0.7 million and 0.6 million for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2025, respectively, were excluded from the calculation of the dilutive effect of stock options and restricted stock awards. See the Company's 2024 Form 10-K, Note 19, Stock Based Compensation for further information.

NOTE 5: ACQUISITIONS

Aero Turbine, Inc.

On August 23, 2024, the Company acquired 100% of the shares of Aero Turbine, Inc. ("Aero Turbine") for a purchase price of approximately \$130.7 million subject to post-closing adjustments, comprised of an initial cash purchase price of \$116.8 million and \$15.2 million representing the estimated fair value of additional consideration contingently payable based upon the achievement of gross profit in excess of certain gross profit targets for the period from January 1, 2024, to December 31, 2026. During the three months ended June 30, 2025, the Company received an additional cash payment of \$1.3 million related to a post-closing purchase price adjustment related to working capital. The Company recorded this measurement period adjustment as a \$1.3 million decrease to goodwill, resulting in a corresponding \$1.3 million decrease of the initial purchase price of \$132.0 million. The maximum contingent consideration payable from the Company to the seller is \$21.0 million. The current portion of the contingent consideration liability is recorded in Accrued and other current liabilities and the non-current portion is recorded in Other non-current liabilities. Aero Turbine is a provider of engine component repair, overhaul services and other engineering services for U.S. and foreign military customers.

The results of operations of Aero Turbine have been included in the consolidated financial statements of the Company from August 23, 2024, the closing date of the acquisition. Aero Turbine is reported within the Component Repair Services segment.

The Company has allocated the purchase price based on the fair values of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the Aero Turbine acquisition date as follows:

	Amounts acquired on August 23, 2024 (as adjusted)				
	,	thousands)			
Cash	\$	2,765			
Accounts receivable		4,066			
Contract assets		12,419			
Inventories		10,213			
Prepaid expenses and other current assets		2,518			
Property, plant and equipment		5,868			
Operating lease right of use asset		999			
Customer relationships		75,000			
Goodwill		51,723			
Total assets acquired		165,571			
Accounts payable		5,353			
Accrued and other current liabilities		7,131			
Contract liabilities		1,205			
Current portion operating lease liabilities		111			
Income taxes payable		4,901			
Long-term portion operating lease liabilities		899			
Deferred income tax liabilities		15,269			
Total liabilities assumed		34,869			
Net assets acquired		130,702			
Cash acquired		2,765			
Purchase price, net of cash acquired	\$	127,937			

The fair values presented were estimated by management. During the three months ended March 31, 2025, the Company recorded measurement period adjustments related to estimate refinement of a \$0.8 million decrease in accrued and other current liabilities, resulting in a corresponding decrease in goodwill. During the three months ended June 30, 2025, the Company recorded measurement period adjustments related to post-closing working capital adjustment of a \$1.3 million decrease in purchase price and estimate refinement of a \$0.4 million increase in deferred income tax liabilities, resulting in a \$0.9 million decrease in goodwill. The fair value of the assets acquired includes accounts receivable of \$4.1 million, of which all is expected to be collectible. The excess of the cost of acquisition over the fair value of the net tangible assets acquired of \$126.7 million has been allocated as \$75.0 million of customer relationships and \$51.7 million of goodwill. The goodwill recognized is attributable to Aero Turbine's workforce, market position, quality, customized repairs and reliable turnaround times. Goodwill will not be amortized but will be reviewed annually for impairment. None of the goodwill is expected to be deductible for income tax purposes. Customer relationships are expected to be amortized over 15 years.

Acquisition related costs of \$1.4 million were incurred for the year ended December 31, 2024. These costs are reported in the Consolidated Statements of Operations as "Acquisition costs". Such expenses include professional fees and other third-party costs.

The following reflects the pro forma impact of the purchase of Aero Turbine on the Company's results of operations giving effect of the transaction if it had taken place on January 1, 2023:

		Three months ended September 30, 2024		ne months ended September 30,
				2024
		(in tho	usands)	
Revenue	\$	1,256,405	\$	3,881,952
Net income		17,177		28,801

NOTE 6: INVENTORIES

Inventories consist of the following:

	_	September	30, 2025	December 31, 2024		
			(in thou	usands)		
Raw materials	5	\$	824,039	\$	662,887	
Finished goods			3,460		2,529	
Work in process			129,232		181,602	
Total inventory	9	\$!	956,731	\$	847,018	

Inventory balances were net of reserves for slow moving, excess or obsolete engine and aircraft parts inventory of \$119.0 million and \$110.2 million as of September 30, 2025 and December 31, 2024, respectively.

NOTE 7: GOODWILL

The changes in the carrying amount of goodwill for the periods ended September 30, 2025 and 2024, are as follows:

		Segment				
	En	Engine Services		ponent Repair Services		Total
			(i	n thousands)		
Balance, December 31, 2024	\$	1,224,707	\$	461,263	\$	1,685,970
Purchase price adjustments		_		(1,715)		(1,715)
Balance, September 30, 2025	\$	1,224,707	\$	459,548	\$	1,684,255
				Segment		
	En	gine Services	Component Repair Services			Total
			(i	n thousands)		
Balance, December 31, 2023	\$	1,224,707	\$	407,789	\$	1,632,496
Goodwill acquired		_		53,427		53,427

Goodwill Impairment Testing

Goodwill, September 30, 2024

The Company reviews goodwill at least annually for potential impairment, as of October 1, and more frequently, if events or changes in circumstances suggest that an impairment may exist. The Company performed its annual goodwill impairment testing as of October 1, 2024, and determined that no adjustments to the carrying value of goodwill were necessary as it was more likely than not that the fair values of the Company's reporting units are above their carrying values and that no impairment had occurred. The Company has assessed the changes in events and circumstances through the quarter ended September 30, 2025, and have concluded that no triggering events has occurred that would require interim testing.

1,224,707

461,216

1,685,923

NOTE 8: LONG-TERM DEBT

Long-term debt consists of the following:

	As o	f September 30, 2025	As	s of December 31, 2024
		(in tho	isands)	
New 2024 Term Loan Facilities	\$	2,233,125	\$	2,250,000
New 2024 Revolving Credit Facility		110,000		_
Finance leases		18,554		18,375
Other		1,151		1,230
		2,362,830		2,269,605
Less: Current portion		(23,482)		(23,449)
Unamortized discounts		(19,991)		(22,456)
Unamortized deferred finance charges		(13,997)		(15,723)
Long-term debt	\$	2,305,360	\$	2,207,977

New Credit Agreement

On October 31, 2024, the Company entered into the New Credit Agreement providing for the New 2024 Term Loan Facilities due October 31, 2031, in an aggregate principal amount of \$2,250.0 million, and the New 2024 Revolving Credit Facility due October 31, 2029, in an aggregate principal amount of up to \$750.0 million. Concurrent with the closing of the New Credit Agreement, the Company used the proceeds of the New 2024 Term Loan Facilities and approximately \$95.0 million of the proceeds of the New 2024 Revolving Credit Facility to repay in full amounts outstanding under (i) the Prior Credit Agreement and (ii) the Prior ABL Credit Agreement, terminating each of the debt facilities thereunder. The Company expensed \$23.7 million related to new third party fees that did not meet the criteria for deferral as refinancing costs on the Consolidated Income Statement during the year ended December 31, 2024, of which \$5.7 million related to the New Credit Agreement, \$11.6 million related to the New 2024 Term Loan Facilities, \$1.5 million related to the September 6, 2024 amendment to the Prior Credit Agreement and \$4.9 million related to the March 25, 2024 Prior Credit Agreement.

New 2024 Term Loan Facilities

The New Credit Agreement provided for (i) a senior secured dollar term loan B facility, incurred by the U.S. Borrower in an aggregate principal amount of \$1,630.0 million (the "New 2024 Term Loan B-1 Facility"), (ii) a senior secured dollar term loan B facility incurred by the Canadian Borrower in an aggregate principal amount of \$620.0 million (the "New 2024 Term Loan B-2 Facility" and, together with the New 2024 Term Loan B-1 Facility, the "New 2024 Term Loan Facilities"). The New 2024 Term Loan Facilities were fully drawn on October 31, 2024, in an aggregate principal amount of \$2,250.0 million, bearing interest at a Secured Overnight Financing Rate ("SOFR") + 2.25% with provision for a rate step-down to 2.00% based on achieving a consolidated First Lien Net Leverage Ratio (as defined in the New Credit Agreement) of less than 3.00x, and will mature on October 31, 2031. The Company incurred new third party fees of \$13.2 million related to the New 2024 Term Loan Facilities of which \$11.6 million were expensed as refinancing costs on the Consolidated Income Statement during the year ended December 31, 2024, and \$1.6 million of deferred finance charges were recorded as a reduction of long-term debt on the Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2024 and will be amortized on a straight-line basis over the term of the credit facility. As of September 30, 2025, the effective interest rate on the New 2024 Term Loan Facilities was SOFR + 2.00%.

New 2024 Revolving Credit Facility

The New Credit Agreement provided for a senior secured multicurrency revolving credit facility available to the Company in an aggregate principal amount of up to \$750.0 million (of which up to \$150.0 million is available for the issuance of letters of credit) (the "New 2024 Revolving Credit Facility" and, together with the New 2024 Term Loan Facilities, the "New Senior Secured Credit Facilities"). The New 2024 Term Loan Facilities will mature on October 31, 2031, and the New 2024 Revolving Credit Facility will mature on October 31, 2029. As of December 31, 2024, the New 2024 Revolving Credit Facility had no outstanding borrowings. Borrowings bear interest at SOFR + 2.00% with provision for step-down to 1.75% and 1.5% based on a achieving a consolidated First Lien Net Leverage Ratio of less than 3.25x and 2.75x, respectively. As of September 30, 2025, the Company had \$625.3 million related to the New 2024 Revolving Credit Facility. The Company incurred new lender fees of \$3.8 million related to the New 2024 Revolving Credit Facility, which are recorded as an other long-term asset on the Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2024, and will be amortized on a straight-line basis over the term of the facility. As of September 30, 2025, the effective interest rate on the New 2024 Revolving Credit Facility was SOFR + 1.75%.

Prior Credit Agreement

On October 31, 2024, concurrent with the closing of the New Credit Agreement, the Company used the proceeds of the New 2024 Term Loan Facilities and the New 2024 Revolving Credit Facility to repay in full amounts outstanding under the Prior Credit Agreement terminating each of the debt facilities thereunder, which resulted in a loss on extinguishment of debt of \$4.7 million recognized in the year ended December 31, 2024, \$0.7 million related to the March 25, 2024 amendment of the Prior Credit Agreement, \$3.6 million upon the commencement of the New Credit Agreement on October 31, 2024 representing the write off unamortized discounts and deferred financing charges related to the extinguished portions of the Prior Term Loan facilities and \$0.4 million related to the extinguishment of the Prior 2023 Revolving Credit Facility.

Prior 2023 and Prior 2024 Term Loan Facilities

On August 24, 2023, the Company amended the Prior Credit Agreement to combine the 2019 Term Loan Facilities and the 2021 Term Loan Facility into the Prior 2023 Term Loan Facilities in the amount of \$2,575.0 million less a 1.0% discount. The Prior 2023 Term Loan Facilities were comprised of two tranches, referred to as the Prior 2023 Term Loan B-1 Facility and the Prior Term Loan B-2 Facility, with identical terms that were entered into by subsidiaries of the Company. The Prior 2023 Term Loan Facilities incurred interest at the Term SOFR Rate plus 3.75% to 4.00% or the Base Prime Rate plus 2.75% to 3.00% and were scheduled to mature on August 24, 2028. As a result of the amendment, both a debt modification and a debt extinguishment arose. The Company recognized \$0.8 million in deferred charges related to the Prior 2023 Term Loan Facilities which are recorded as a reduction of long-term debt on the Consolidated Balance Sheets. The Company also recognized a loss on the extinguishment of debt of \$6.2 million, representing the write-off of the unamortized deferred finance charges and original issue discount related to the extinguished portion of the 2019 Term Loan Facility, while \$22.8 million of the unamortized deferred finance charges and original issue discount relating to the modified debt continued to be deferred. In addition, \$19.9 million in third party fees related to the modified portion of the 2019 Term Loan Facilities were expensed as refinancing costs on the Consolidated Income Statement during the year ended December 31, 2023, as these costs did not meet the criteria for deferral.

On March 25, 2024, the Company amended its Prior Credit Agreement, dated as of April 4, 2019 (as amended, restated, modified and/or supplemented from time to time, the "Credit Agreement"), among Dynasty Acquisition Co., Inc. as the U.S. borrower (the "U.S. Borrower"), Standard Aero Limited, as the Canadian borrower (the "Canadian Borrower"), Credit Suisse AG, Cayman Islands Branch, as administrative agent and collateral agent, and certain other parties thereto, to refinance the \$2,562.1 million existing senior secured term loans then-outstanding thereunder (the "Prior 2023 Term Loans") and provide the Company with an incremental \$200.0 million as additional term loans (together with the refinanced 2023 Term Loans, the "Prior 2024 Term Loans" and the facilities in respect thereof, the "Prior 2024 Term Loan Facilities"). In addition, the amendment reduced the applicable interest rate to the Term SOFR Rate plus 3.25% to 3.50% or the Base Prime Rate plus 2.25% to 2.50%. All other terms of the Credit Agreement remained unchanged. The incremental proceeds from the Prior 2024 Term Loans were used toward the partial redemption of the Prior Senior Notes. As a result of the amendment, the Company recognized a loss on the extinguishment of debt of \$0.7 million in the year ended December 31, 2024, representing the write-off of the unamortized deferred finance charges related to the extinguished portion of the Prior 2023 Term Loans. In addition, \$4.9 million in third party fees related to the modified portion of the Term Loans were expensed as refinancing costs on the Consolidated Income Statement during the year ended December 31, 2024, as these costs did not meet the criteria for deferral. The Company recognized \$0.1 million in deferred charges which are recorded as a reduction of long-term debt on the Consolidated Balance Sheets. The original issue discount and deferred charges were amortized over the term of the Credit Agreement using the straight-line method, which approximates the effective interest rate method.

On September 6, 2024, the Company amended the Prior Credit Agreement to incur additional 2024 Term Loans in a principal amount of \$200.0 million which were, in part, used to paydown a portion of the advances under the Company's Prior ABL Credit Facility used to fund the acquisition of Aero Turbine. There were no other substantive changes made to the Prior Credit Agreement. As a result of the amendment, \$1.5 million in third party fees related to the modified portion of the Term Loans were expensed as refinancing costs on the Consolidated Income Statement during the year ended December 31, 2024, as these costs did not meet the criteria for deferral. The original issue discount and deferred charges were amortized over the term of the Prior Credit Agreement using the straight-line method, which approximates the effective interest rate method.

On October 31, 2024 concurrent with the New Credit Agreement, the Company recognized a \$3.6 million loss on extinguishment of debt representing the write off unamortized discounts and deferred financing charges related to the extinguished portions of the Prior Term Loan facilities.

Prior 2023 Revolving Credit Facility

The Prior 2023 Revolving Credit Facility was a senior secured multicurrency cash flow revolving credit facility available under the Prior Credit Agreement, with a capacity of \$150.0 million (of which up to \$75.0 million was available for the issuance of letters of

credit) and was scheduled to mature on May 1, 2028. The Prior 2023 Revolving Credit Facility bore interest at the Adjusted Term SOFR rate plus 3.125% to 3.50%. The applicable rates on borrowing under the credit agreement were based on the Consolidated First Lien Net Leverage Ratio. The 2023 Revolving Credit Facility was subject to a maximum Consolidated First Lien Net Leverage Ratio that was tested at the end of any fiscal quarter if the total revolving credit loans outstanding under the Prior 2023 Revolving Credit Facility on such date exceed 35.0% of the aggregate amount of all commitments in respect of the Prior 2023 Revolving Credit Facility.

On October 31, 2024, concurrent with the closing of the New Credit Agreement, the Company terminated the Prior 2023 Revolving Credit Facility which had no outstanding loans under it, resulting in a loss on extinguishment of debt of \$0.4 million recognized in the year ended December 31, 2024.

Prior ABL Credit Facility

On October 31, 2024, concurrent with the closing of the New Credit Agreement, the Company used the proceeds of the New 2024 Term Loan Facilities and the New 2024 Revolving Credit Facility to repay in full amounts outstanding under the Prior ABL Credit Agreement, terminating the debt facility thereunder. The extinguishment of the Prior ABL Credit Facility resulted in a loss on extinguishment of debt of \$2.0 million recognized in the year ended December 31, 2024.

The Prior ABL Credit Facility had a capacity of \$400.0 million, was repayable in U.S. dollars and was scheduled to mature on May 1, 2028. At the Company's discretion, the borrowings under the Prior ABL Credit Facility bore interest at the Adjusted Term SOFR rate plus 1.50% to 2.00%, Prime Lending Rate plus 0.50% to 1.00%, or the Base Rate on Canadian borrowings plus 0.50% to 1.00%, with the spread dependent on the amount of the borrowing and was subject to certain financial covenants. The ABL Credit Facility had an annual commitment fee of 0.250% to 0.375% based on excess availability. The ABL Credit Facility contained financial covenants which were required to be calculated immediately prior to or during the continuance of a trigger period. The trigger period was a period where borrowing availability was less than the greater of 10% of the line cap and \$30.0 million.

Prior Senior Notes

The Prior Senior Notes bore an interest rate of 10.0% and were scheduled to mature on April 4, 2027. On March 25, 2024, the Company partially redeemed \$200.0 million of the Prior Senior Notes. As a result of the redemption, the Company recognized a loss on extinguishment of debt of \$2.9 million in the year ended December 31, 2024, representing the write-off of the unamortized deferred finance charges related to the redeemed portion of the Prior Senior Notes. On October 3, 2024, the Company used the proceeds from the initial public offering to repay the full outstanding principal and accrued interest on the Prior Senior Notes, totaling \$487.5 million. The extinguishment of the Prior Senior Notes resulted in a loss on extinguishment of debt of \$5.7 million recognized in the year ended December 31, 2024.

The Company's weighted average interest rate of borrowings under its senior credit agreements was 6.3% and 6.4% for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2025, respectively, and 9.0% and 9.2% for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2024, respectively.

Certain of these agreements contain non-financial covenants that limit both the Company's ability to raise additional financings in the future and the Company's ability to pay dividends subject to select amounts and incurrence ratios.

As of September 30, 2025, the amounts of the long-term debt payable for the years ending on December 31 are as follows:

	Finance Leases				 Total
				(in thousands)	
2025 (excluding the nine months ended September 30, 2025)	\$	463	\$	5,625	\$ 6,088
2026		1,640		23,651	25,291
2027		1,635		22,500	24,135
2028		1,625		22,500	24,125
2029		1,625		132,500	134,125
Thereafter		21,506		2,137,500	 2,159,006
Total	\$	28,494	\$	2,344,276	\$ 2,372,770
Amount representing interest		(9,940)		_	(9,940)
Unamortized discounts		_		(19,991)	(19,991)
Unamortized deferred finance charges				(13,997)	 (13,997)
Total long-term debt payable	\$	18,554	\$	2,310,288	\$ 2,328,842

NOTE 9: LEASES

Lease costs consist of the following:

	Three Months Ended September 30,			Nine Months Ended September 30,				
	2	2025		2024		2025		2024
				(in the	usana	(s)		
Finance lease expense								
Amortization	\$	444	\$	350	\$	1,042	\$	1,042
Interest expense		198		229		694		713
Operating lease expense		9,713		8,844		26,144		23,286
Short term lease expense		508		258		1,326		918
	\$	10,863	\$	9,681	\$	29,206	\$	25,959

The impact of leasing on the Consolidated Balance Sheets consists of the following:

	Classification on the				
	Consolidated Balance Sheets	September 30, 2025		Dece	mber 31, 2024
			(in tho	isands)	
Assets					
Finance lease assets	Property, plant and equipment, net	\$	19,220	\$	20,262
Operating lease assets	Operating lease right of use asset, net		221,057		172,206
Total lease assets		\$	240,277	\$	192,468
Current liabilities					
Finance lease liabilities	Current portion of long-term debt	\$	817	\$	835
Operating lease liabilities	Operating lease liabilities		20,563		17,663
Non-current liabilities					
Finance lease liabilities	Long-term debt		17,737		17,540
Operating lease liabilities	Long-term operating lease liabilities		211,425		164,224
Total lease liabilities		\$	250,542	\$	200,262

Supplemental cash flow information related to leases consisted of the following:

	N	Nine Months Ended September 30		
		2025		2024
		(in tho	isands)	
Cash paid for amounts included in measurement of liabilities:				
Operating cash flows from operating leases	\$	25,160	\$	21,931
Operating cash flows from finance leases		693		690
Financing cash flows from finance leases		584		633
Right of use assets obtained in exchange for lease liabilities:				
Operating lease right of use asset		68,154		25,010

Future minimum operating lease payments consist of the following for the twelve months ending December 31:

	 Operating Leases
	(in thousands)
2025 (excluding the nine months ended September 30, 2025)	\$ 9,161
2026	33,276
2027	31,948
2028	31,415
2029	27,208
Thereafter	240,958
Total future minimum payments	373,966
Less imputed interest	 141,978
Present value of minimum payments	\$ 231,988

Weighted average remaining lease term and borrowing rate consisted of the following:

	September 3	0, 2025	December 3	1, 2024
	Operating Leases	Finance Leases	Operating Leases	Finance Leases
Weighted average remaining lease term (in years)	16.1	18.9	16.0	19.5
Weighted average borrowing rate	6.3%	4.7%	6.2%	4.7%

NOTE 10: INCOME TAXES

The Company's estimated annual effective tax rate for the nine months ended September 30, 2025 was 26.3%. The difference between this and the U.S. statutory rate of 21.0% is primarily due to non-deductible expenses, Global Intangible Low-Taxed Income ("GILTI"), which was enacted under the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act of 2017, and state and foreign tax rates.

The Company's estimated annual effective tax rate for the nine months ended September 30, 2024 was 60.4%. The difference between this and the U.S. statutory rate of 21.0% is primarily due to the mix of earnings between U.S. and foreign jurisdictions, as well as the Company increasing its valuation allowance in connection with the deferred tax asset related to the interest limitation under Section 163(j) of the Internal Revenue Code. Other factors impacting the rate include non-deductible expenses, and GILTI, which was enacted under the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act of 2017.

The Company did not record any significant changes in its unrecognized tax benefits or total interest and penalties for tax years remaining open to examination during the nine months ended September 30, 2025 and 2024. Currently, there are not any ongoing audits or examinations with any tax jurisdictions.

In 2021, the Organization for Economic Cooperation and Development ("OECD") released Pillar Two Global Anti-Base Erosion model rules ("Pillar Two Rules"), designed to ensure large corporations are taxed at a minimum rate of 15.0% in all countries of operation. On June 20, 2024, as part of Bill C-69, Canada enacted its Pillar Two legislation effective January 1, 2024. Canada Bill C-59 was also

enacted on June 20, 2024 and included the excessive interest and financing expenses limitation ("EIFEL") regime effective for tax years beginning on or after December 31, 2023. The Company has performed a quantitative and qualitative assessment and determined the effects are not materially significant to the Company's financial statements for the nine months ended September 30, 2025 and 2024, respectively. StandardAero will continue to evaluate the Pillar Two Rules and EIFEL for their potential impact on future periods as further legislation is proposed or enacted.

On July 4, 2025 the One Big Beautiful Bill Act (the "OBBBA"), which includes a broad range of U.S. tax reform provisions, was signed into law by the President of the United States. The OBBBA includes significant provisions, such as (i) the permanent extension of certain expiring provisions of the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act, (ii) modifications to the international tax framework, and (iii) the restoration of favorable tax treatment for certain business provisions. The OBBBA has multiple effective dates, with certain provisions effective in 2025 and others implemented through 2027. For the three and nine month periods ending September 30, 2025, the impact from the OBBBA provisions is immaterial to the effective tax rate. The impact of the OBBBA provisions is also immaterial to the estimated annual effective tax rate. The Company is continuing to evaluate the impact for future periods.

NOTE 11: COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Commitments

The Company has future contractual commitments of \$18.3 million as of September 30, 2025, and had \$30.6 million as of December 31, 2024, for capital commitments.

Contingent liabilities

The Company is involved, from time to time, in legal actions and claims arising in the ordinary course of business. Although predicting the outcome of legal actions and claims is difficult, based on current knowledge and consultation with legal counsel, the Company does not expect the outcome of these matters, either individually or in aggregate, to have a material adverse effect on the Company's consolidated financial position.

From time to time, the Company enters into contracts that contain liquidated damage provisions, which provide for the payment of damages to the Company's customers in the event of non-compliance with certain contractually-specified terms and conditions. The Company evaluates its exposure to these provisions on a contract-by-contract basis, and records provisions for such contractual provisions when it has been determined that a loss is probable and estimable. As of September 30, 2025 and December 31, 2024 the provision is nominal.

The Company has facilities that are located on land that has been used for industrial purposes for an extended period of time. The Company has not been named as a defendant in any environmental suit. Management believes that the Company is currently in substantial compliance with environmental laws. The Company incurs capital and operating costs relating to environmental compliance on an ongoing basis. The Company does not believe it will be required under existing environmental laws to expend amounts that would have a material adverse effect on its financial position or results of operations as a whole.

NOTE 12: GUARANTEES

The Company issues letters of credit, performance bonds, bid bonds or guarantees in the ordinary course of business. These instruments are generally issued in conjunction with contracts or other business requirements. The total of these instruments outstanding was approximately \$28.0 million and \$20.6 million as of September 30, 2025 and December 31, 2024, respectively.

NOTE 13: RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In connection with the Acquisition, on April 4, 2019, Dynasty Acquisition entered into a consulting services agreement (the "Carlyle Services Agreement") with Carlyle Investment Management L.L.C. ("CIM"), pursuant to which Dynasty Acquisition paid CIM a one-time fee of approximately \$24.5 million for strategic advisory and consulting services provided to Dynasty Acquisition in connection with the Acquisition. Pursuant to the Carlyle Services Agreement, and subject to certain conditions, Dynasty Acquisition also pays to CIM an annual fee of approximately \$2.4 million, payable in quarterly installments in advance, for the advisory, consulting and other services provided by CIM pursuant to the Carlyle Services Agreement. Dynasty Acquisition also reimburses CIM's reasonable out-of-pocket expenses incurred in connection with services provided pursuant to the Carlyle Services Agreement, and Dynasty Acquisition may pay CIM additional fees associated with other future transactions or in consideration of any additional services provided under the Carlyle Services Agreement. In connection with the IPO, the Carlyle Services Agreement was amended and restated, and will continue in full force and effect until the earlier of the second anniversary of the consummation of the IPO, which is October 3, 2026, and the date on which CIM and its affiliates collectively and beneficially own, directly or indirectly, less than 10% of the Company's outstanding

voting common stock. For the three months ended September 30, 2025, the Company paid CIM approximately \$0.6 million pursuant to the Carlyle Services Agreement. For the nine months ended September 30, 2025, the Company paid CIM approximately \$1.8 million

In connection with the Acquisition, on April 4, 2019, Dynasty Acquisition entered into a consulting service agreement (the "Beamer Services Agreement") with Beamer Investment Inc., an affiliate of GIC, pursuant to which Dynasty Acquisition paid Beamer Investment Inc. a one-time fee of approximately \$5.5 million for strategic advisory and consulting, services provided to Dynasty Acquisition in connection with the Acquisition. Pursuant to the Beamer Services Agreement, and subject to certain conditions, Dynasty Acquisition also pays to Beamer Investment Inc. an annual fee of approximately \$0.6 million, payable in quarterly installments in advance, for the advisory, consulting and other services provided by Beamer Investment Inc. pursuant to the Beamer Services Agreement. Dynasty Acquisition also reimburses Beamer Investment Inc.'s reasonable out-of-pocket expenses incurred in connection with services provided pursuant to the Beamer Services Agreement, and Dynasty Acquisition may pay Beamer Investment Inc. additional fees associated with other future transactions or in consideration of any additional services provided under the Beamer Services Agreement. In connection with the IPO, the Beamer Services Agreement was amended and restated, and will continue in full force and effect until the earlier of the second anniversary of the consummation of the IPO and the date on which Beamer Investment Inc. and its affiliates collectively and beneficially own, directly or indirectly, less than 50% of the Company's outstanding voting common stock that they owned on the date of the closing of the IPO, prior to giving effect to the sale of shares by Beamer Investment Inc. or an affiliate of Beamer Investment Inc. in the IPO. For the three months ended September 30, 2025, the Company paid Beamer Investment Inc. approximately \$0.1 million pursuant to the Beamer Services Agreement. For the nine months ended September 30, 2025, the Company paid Beamer Investment Inc. approximately \$0.4 million.

The Company expensed \$0.8 million and \$2.3 million for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2025, respectively, for advisory and consulting services as outlined above. The Company expensed \$0.8 million and \$2.3 million for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2024, as well as an additional \$1.2 million during the three months ended September 30, 2024 for arrangement fees paid in connection with the amendment to the Prior Credit Agreement.

CFGI, a portfolio company of a fund affiliated with Carlyle, provides the Company with accounting advisory and consulting services. For the three months ended September 30, 2025, the Company paid \$0.9 million, to CFGI for accounting advisory and consulting services. For the nine months ended September 30, 2025, the Company expensed \$2.6 million and paid \$1.7 million, to CFGI for accounting advisory and consulting services. For the three and nine months ended September 30, 2024, the Company expensed \$1.3 million and \$3.6 million and paid \$1.4 million and \$3.0 million, respectively, to CFGI for accounting advisory and consulting services.

NOTE 14: EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

Defined contribution pension plans

The Company has several defined contribution plans covering substantially all of its employees. Costs for the defined contribution plans were \$6.5 million and \$5.7 million for the three months ended September 30, 2025 and 2024, respectively. Costs for the defined contribution plans were \$19.6 million and \$18.0 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2025 and 2024, respectively.

Defined benefit pension plans

The Company maintains defined benefit plans for certain employees in the United Kingdom and France.

In the United Kingdom, the Company maintains two defined benefit schemes which provide both pensions in retirement and death benefits to members. Pension benefits are related to the member's final salary at retirement (or their career average revalued salary) and their length of service. The main scheme is the Vector Aerospace International Limited Pension Scheme (the "Scheme"). The other defined benefit scheme is the Vector Aerospace 1998 Pension Plan (the "Plan"). The Scheme and Plan are generally closed for new members, who participate in a separate defined contribution plan.

In France, the defined benefit plan is a government-mandated defined obligation that provides employees with retirement indemnities in the form of lump sums on the basis of the length of service and employee compensation levels. The plan is unfunded and benefits are paid when amounts become due, commencing when participants retire. Actuarial gains and losses of the year for long service awards are immediately recognized in the Consolidated Statements of Operations.

Costs for the defined benefit plans were \$0.1 million for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2025, respectively. Costs for the defined benefit plans were \$0.1 and \$0.4 for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2024, respectively.

NOTE 15: STOCK BASED COMPENSATION

Following its IPO, the Company has made awards under its 2024 Incentive Award Plan (the "2024 Plan"), which have generally consisted of nonqualified stock options and restricted stock units ("RSUs"). Additionally, certain employees and directors have received restricted stock awards ("RSAs"), which were made in respect of pre-IPO equity awards originally granted to them under the Dynasty Parent Holdings, L.P. and Dynasty Parent Co., Inc. 2019 Long-Term Incentive Plan.

Stock Options

Stock options granted under the 2024 Plan generally vest in three equal annual installments, subject to the participant's continued employment with the Company, and expire ten years from the date of grant. The Company uses a Black-Scholes pricing model to estimate the grant-date fair value of the stock options awarded. The Black-Scholes pricing model requires assumptions regarding the expected volatility of the Company's shares of Common Stock, the risk-free interest rate, the expected term of the stock option award and the Company's dividend yield.

Term. The Company began being publicly traded on October 2, 2024, and as such does not have sufficient historical data to estimate the expected term of the stock option awards. In the absence of sufficient historical data, where the options are considered "plain vanilla," the SEC's Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 110 ("SAB 110") provides guidance for a simplified method of estimating the expected term until more empirical data becomes available. This method calculates the expected term as the average of the weighted vesting term and the contractual term of the options. As such, the Company utilized the SEC's simplified method to calculate the expected term for the options which resulted in a term of 6.0 years.

Expected Dividends. The Company does not pay dividends and is not expected to pay dividends in the near term. As such, the Company elected to use a dividend yield of 0%.

Risk-Free Rate. The Company used the U.S. Treasury Securities yield corresponding to the expected term, of 4.07%.

Expected Volatility. The Company began being publicly traded on October 2, 2024, followed by additional secondary offerings in March 2025 and May 2025, thus the Company has limited trading data to calculate meaningful volatility. As such, the Company relied solely on peer group volatility, calculated at 40.0%.

The following is a summary of the activity for stock option awards:

	Stock Options	Weighted Average ercise Price	Weighted Average Remaining Contractual Term (years)	Intr	ggregate insic Value thousands)
Outstanding at December 31, 2024	463,194	\$ 10.51	5.75	\$	6,600
Granted	737,354	\$ 25.62			
Exercised	_	_			
Forfeited	(26,034)	\$ 25.62			
Outstanding at September 30, 2025	1,174,514	\$ 19.66	7.75	\$	8,960
Options Exercisable at September 30, 2025	50,347	\$ 9.93	3.98	\$	874

Restricted Stock Units ("RSUs"):

The RSUs granted on April 15, 2025 under the 2024 Plan generally vest in three equal annual installments, subject to the participant's continued employment with the Company. The fair value of RSUs granted is estimated using the closing price of the Company's stock on the grant date.

The following is a summary of the activity for RSUs:

	Shares	Gra	ghted Average ant Date Fair ue per Share
Outstanding at December 31, 2024	238,540	\$	29.81
Granted	545,520	\$	26.06
Vested	(8,634)	\$	32.02
Forfeited	(22,129)	\$	25.62
Outstanding at September 30, 2025	753,297	\$	27.19

Restricted Stock Awards ("RSAs"):

The following is a summary of the activity for RSAs:

	Shares	Grant	ed Average Date Fair per Share
Outstanding at December 31, 2024	6,036,550	\$	5.02
Granted	_		_
Vested	(19,963)	\$	7.44
Forfeited	(112,809)	\$	8.23
Outstanding at September 30, 2025	5,903,778	\$	4.95

5,903,778 RSAs were outstanding and included in the Company's 334,470,264 shares of Common Stock outstanding at September 30, 2025.

Stock Based Compensation Expense:

The Company recorded \$4.1 million and \$10.0 million in stock compensation expense during the three and nine months ended September 30, 2025, respectively. The Company will continue to recognize stock compensation expense ratably over the requisite remaining service period for the awards. As of September 30, 2025, there was \$34.0 million of unrecognized compensation costs.

NOTE 16: FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The inputs used to measure fair value into the following hierarchy are determined as follows:

- Level 1 Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
- Level 2 Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for similar assets or liabilities, or unadjusted quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets that are not active, or inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability.
- Level 3 Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

For cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, income taxes receivable and accounts payable, the fair value approximates the carrying value due to the short maturity periods of these financial instruments. For long-term borrowings, the fair value is measured using Level 2 market values.

The interest rate swaps, interest rate caps and foreign exchange contracts are carried at fair value in the Consolidated Balance Sheets. The fair value measurement is classified within Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy, as the inputs to the derivative pricing model are generally observable and do not contain a high level of subjectivity. The fair value of the interest rate agreements is estimated using industry standard valuation models using market-based observable inputs.

Valuation of Contingent Consideration Liability

The fair value of earnout consideration was estimated based on applying a *Monte Carlo* simulation method to forecast achievement of the gross profit targets. This method involves many possible value outcomes which are evaluated to establish an estimated value. Key inputs in the valuation include volatility and discount rates. Due to the significant unobservable inputs used in the valuations, these liabilities are categorized within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.

The Company determined the initial value for the contingent consideration liability of \$15.2 million using the Level 3 inputs as of the issuance date on August 23, 2024. No changes in fair value of contingent consideration liability were recorded during the three months ended September 30, 2025, in the consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive loss as the initial fair value approximates the fair value as of September 30, 2025.

The following table represents the significant inputs used in calculating the fair value of the contingent consideration liability on the issuance date and as of September 30, 2025:

Longest midpoint term	1.86
Gross profit discount rate	10.7%
Risk-free rate	3.9%
Gross profit volatility	23.3%
Payment discount rate	13.2%

The following table summarizes the carrying amounts and fair values of financial instruments:

				As of Septem	ber 3	30, 2025		As of Dece	embei	r 31, 2024
	Balance Sheet Classification	Level		Carrying Amount		Fair Value	Carrying Amount			Fair Value
						(in th	ousar	ids)		
Assets:										
Interest rate swaps	Prepaid expenses and other current assets	2	\$	259	\$	259	\$	1,539	\$	1,539
Foreign exchange contracts	Prepaid expenses and other current assets	2		715		715		_		_
Total assets			\$	974	\$	974	\$	1,539	\$	1,539
Liabilities:										
Interest rate caps	Accrued expenses and other current									
	liabilities	2		6,792		6,792		8,967		8,967
Interest rate caps	Other non-current liabilities	2		1,641		1,641		3,709		3,709
Contingent consideration - current	Accrued expenses and other current									
Carron	liabilities	3		7,000		7,000		7,000		7,000
Contingent consideration - non-current	Other non-current liabilities	3		8,150		8,150		8,150		8,150
Long-term debt, including	g current portion:									
New 2024 Term Loan	(1)	2		2 100 127		2 222 125		2 211 922		2.250.000
Facility	(1)	2	Φ.	2,199,137	Φ.	2,233,125	Φ.	2,211,822	Φ.	2,250,000
Total liabilities			\$	2,222,720	\$	2,256,708	\$	2,239,648	\$	2,277,826

⁽¹⁾ The carrying amount of debt instruments is presented net of the debt issuance costs, premium and discount. Refer to Note 8, "Long-Term Debt", for gross carrying amounts

The gains (losses) on the Company's derivative instruments were as follows:

		Three Mon Septem				Nine Mont Septem		
	Statement of Operations Classification	 2025		2024		2025		2024
		(in thou	thousands)			(in thou	sands)	
Amount of (loss) gain recognized in net income:								
Interest rate swaps	Interest expense	\$ 635	\$	1,631	\$	1,877	\$	8,452
Interest rate caps	Interest expense	(2,819)		559		(8,287)		1,480
Foreign exchange contracts	Selling, general and administrative expense	967		265		1,647		678
Total (loss) gain in net income	,	\$ (1,217)	\$	2,455	\$	(4,763)	\$	10,610
Amount of (loss) gain recognized in other comprehensive income (loss):								
Interest rate swaps	Cash flow hedge gain (loss)	\$ 102	\$	(4,380)	\$	597	\$	1,960
Interest rate caps	Cash flow hedge (loss) gain	(518)		(8,746)		(4,078)		(1,841)
Foreign exchange contracts	Cash flow hedge (loss) gain	(1,696)		569		2,362		297
Total (loss) gain recognized in other comprehensive income		\$ (2,112)	\$	(12,557)	\$	(1,119)	\$	416

NOTE 17: DERIVATIVES AND HEDGING

The Company is exposed to, among other things, the impact of changes in interest rates and foreign currency exchanges rates in the normal course of business. The Company's objective in risk management is to utilize interest rate derivatives to add stability to interest expense and manage its exposure to interest rate movements and utilize foreign exchange rate derivatives to add stability to foreign exchange expense and manage its exposure to exchange rate movements. To accomplish this objective, the Company primarily uses (i) interest-rate swaps and interest-rate caps as part of its interest rate risk management strategy and (ii) foreign currency forward contracts to protect against the foreign currency exchange rate risk inherent on forecasted transactions.

The Company uses derivative financial instruments only to the extent necessary to hedge identified business risks and does not enter into such transactions for trading purposes.

Interest-rate swap and interest-rate cap agreements

Interest-rate swaps designated as cash flow hedges involve the receipt of variable amounts from a counterparty in exchange for the Company making fixed-rate payments over the life of the agreements without exchange of the underlying notional amount. Interest-rate caps designated as cash flow hedges involve payment of a fixed premium to a counterparty in exchange for the company receiving a SOFR cap over the life of the agreement without exchange of the underlying notional amount.

During the three and nine months ended September 30, 2025 and 2024, such derivatives were used to hedge the variable cash flows associated with its long-term debt agreements.

The tables below summarize the key terms of the interest-rate swap and interest-rate cap agreements:

Interest-rate swap agreements:

	Notional Amount				Effective Date	Maturity Date	Interest - Rate
	(In thousands)						
\$	500,000	(1)	June 28, 2019	March 27, 2024	Average fixed SOFR rate of 2.41% (2)		
\$	400,000		March 31, 2023	December 31, 2025	Fixed SOFR rate of 3.71%		

The original interest-rate swap agreement, dated November 30, 2022, has an initial notional amount of \$1,000.0 million, decreasing to \$750.0 million on March 31, 2022, and to \$500.0 million on March 31, 2023.

⁽²⁾ The interest rate was amended on June 29, 2023 from LIBOR (2.47%) to SOFR (2.41%).

Interest-rate cap agreements:

 Aggregate Notional Amount		Effective Date	Maturity Date	Interest - Rate
(In thousands)				
\$ 1,500,000	(1)	March 31, 2023	September 30, 2025	Capped SOFR rate of 4.45% (2)
\$ 1,500,000		September 30, 2025	December 31, 2026	Capped SOFR rate of 5.00%

The original interest-rate cap agreement, dated November 30, 2022, has an initial notional amount of \$500.0 million, increasing to \$1,000.0 million on March 31, 2023, and increasing to \$1,500.0 million on March 28, 2024.

The amounts shown in the table below represent the gross amounts of recognized assets and liabilities, the amounts offset in the Consolidated Balance Sheets and the net amounts of assets and liabilities presented therein:

		As of Septem	ber :	30, 2025		As of Decem	ber 31, 2024		
	Asset			Liability		Asset		Liability	
				(in thousands)					
Interest-rate swap agreements	\$	259	\$	_	\$	1,539	\$	_	
Interest-rate cap agreements				8,433				12,676	
Net derivatives as classified in the consolidated balance sheets	\$	259	\$	8,433	\$	1,539	\$	12,676	

For the interest-rate swaps, differences between the hedged interest rate and the fixed rate are recorded as interest expense in the Consolidated Statements of Operations in the same period that the related interest is recorded for the Company's long-term debt agreements.

For the interest-rate caps, monthly premiums and differences received between the hedged interest rate and the interest rate cap are recorded to interest expense in the Consolidated Statements of Operations in the same period that the related interest is recorded for the Company's long-term debt agreements.

Foreign currency forward exchange contracts

The Company has operations in Canada, as well as other countries outside of North America, and consequently the Consolidated Balance Sheets can be affected by movements in exchange rates for limited balances denominated in foreign currency. Currency exposures can also arise from certain revenue and purchase transactions denominated in foreign currencies, primarily payroll costs which are in local currencies.

The Company enters into short-term foreign exchange contracts throughout the year designated as a cash flow hedge to manage the exposure to changes in the exchange rate on its Canadian and United Kingdom payroll costs, requiring the Company to buy a notional amount of Canadian dollars and British Pounds Sterling. The contracts require the Company to buy a notional amount of the foreign currency at a set rate weekly from a reference date to maturity date, or until a maximum value is reached.

On April 7, 2025, the Company entered into a foreign currency contract at a notional value of GBP 39.5 million and CAD 136.5 million maturing on December 31, 2025. Previously, the Company had one foreign currency contract that was entered on April 12, 2024 at a notional value of GBP 17.5 million and matured on December 31, 2024.

⁽²⁾ The interest rate was amended on June 29, 2023 from LIBOR (4.50%) to SOFR (4.45%).

NOTE 18: ACCUMULATED OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)

Comprehensive income (loss) includes all non-stockholder changes in equity. The changes in accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) by component is as follows:

	Interest- Rate Hedges		Foreign Exchange Hedge		Foreign Currency Translation		Employee Benefit Plan			Total
					(ii	n thousands)				
Balance, December 31, 2024	\$	(8,410)	\$	_	\$	_	\$	(3,012)	\$	(11,422)
Other comprehensive loss before										
Reclassifications, net of income tax		(2,006)		_		_		_		(2,006)
Amounts reclassified from accumulated other										
comprehensive income		1,582		<u> </u>						1,582
Net other comprehensive loss		(424)								(424)
Balance, March 31, 2025		(8,834)		_		_		(3,012)		(11,846)
Other comprehensive (loss) gain before										
Reclassifications, net of income tax		(329)		2,963		_		_		2,634
Amounts reclassified from accumulated other										
comprehensive income (loss)		1,635		(497)						1,138
Net other comprehensive income		1,306		2,466		_		_		3,772
Balance, June 30, 2025		(7,528)		2,466		_		(3,012)		(8,074)
Other comprehensive loss before										
reclassifications, net of income tax		(317)		(1,238)		_		_		(1,555)
Amounts reclassified from accumulated other										
comprehensive income (loss)		1,664		(706)						958
Net other comprehensive income (loss)		1,347		(1,944)		_		_		(597)
Balance, September 30, 2025	\$	(6,181)	\$	522	\$		\$	(3,012)	\$	(8,671)
		nterest- Rate Hedges		Foreign Exchange Hedge	_	Foreign Currency Translation		Employee Benefit Plan		Total
Palango Dagombor 21, 2022		Rate Hedges	¢.	Exchange Hedge	(ii	Currency Franslation n thousands)	_	Benefit Plan	•	
Balance, December 31, 2023		Rate	\$	Exchange	_	Currency Franslation	\$	Benefit	\$	Total (6,962)
Other comprehensive gain (loss) before		Rate Hedges (4,746)	\$	Exchange Hedge 673	(ii	Currency Franslation In thousands)	_	Benefit Plan	\$	(6,962)
Other comprehensive gain (loss) before reclassifications, net of income tax		Rate Hedges	\$	Exchange Hedge	(i	Currency Franslation n thousands)	_	Benefit Plan	\$	
Other comprehensive gain (loss) before reclassifications, net of income tax Amounts reclassified from accumulated other		Rate Hedges (4,746) 8,041	\$	Exchange Hedge 673 (450)	(i	Currency Franslation In thousands)	_	Benefit Plan	\$	(6,962) 7,357
Other comprehensive gain (loss) before reclassifications, net of income tax Amounts reclassified from accumulated other comprehensive loss		Rate Hedges (4,746) 8,041 (4,402)	\$	673 (450) (160)	(i	Currency Franslation In thousands) 367 (234)	_	Benefit Plan	\$	(6,962) 7,357 (4,562)
Other comprehensive gain (loss) before reclassifications, net of income tax Amounts reclassified from accumulated other comprehensive loss Net other comprehensive income (loss)		Rate Hedges (4,746) 8,041 (4,402) 3,639	\$	673 (450) (160) (610)	(i	Currency Franslation n thousands) 367 (234) — (234)	_	(3,256) ————————————————————————————————————	\$	(6,962) 7,357 (4,562) 2,795
Other comprehensive gain (loss) before reclassifications, net of income tax Amounts reclassified from accumulated other comprehensive loss Net other comprehensive income (loss) Balance, March 31, 2024		Rate Hedges (4,746) 8,041 (4,402)	\$	673 (450) (160)	(i	Currency Franslation In thousands) 367 (234)	_	Benefit Plan	\$	(6,962) 7,357 (4,562)
Other comprehensive gain (loss) before reclassifications, net of income tax Amounts reclassified from accumulated other comprehensive loss Net other comprehensive income (loss) Balance, March 31, 2024 Other comprehensive gain (loss) before		Rate Hedges (4,746) 8,041 (4,402) 3,639 (1,107)	\$	673 (450) (160) (610) 63	(i	Currency Franslation n thousands) 367 (234) (234) 133	_	(3,256) ————————————————————————————————————	\$	(6,962) 7,357 (4,562) 2,795 (4,167)
Other comprehensive gain (loss) before reclassifications, net of income tax Amounts reclassified from accumulated other comprehensive loss Net other comprehensive income (loss) Balance, March 31, 2024 Other comprehensive gain (loss) before reclassifications, net of income tax		Rate Hedges (4,746) 8,041 (4,402) 3,639	\$	673 (450) (160) (610)	(i	Currency Franslation n thousands) 367 (234) — (234)	_	(3,256) ————————————————————————————————————	\$	(6,962) 7,357 (4,562) 2,795
Other comprehensive gain (loss) before reclassifications, net of income tax Amounts reclassified from accumulated other comprehensive loss Net other comprehensive income (loss) Balance, March 31, 2024 Other comprehensive gain (loss) before reclassifications, net of income tax Amounts reclassified from accumulated other		Rate Hedges (4,746) 8,041 (4,402) 3,639 (1,107) 2,423	\$	673 (450) (160) (610) 63	(i	Currency Franslation n thousands) 367 (234) (234) 133	_	(3,256) ————————————————————————————————————	\$	(6,962) 7,357 (4,562) 2,795 (4,167) 2,586
Other comprehensive gain (loss) before reclassifications, net of income tax Amounts reclassified from accumulated other comprehensive loss Net other comprehensive income (loss) Balance, March 31, 2024 Other comprehensive gain (loss) before reclassifications, net of income tax Amounts reclassified from accumulated other comprehensive loss		Rate Hedges (4,746) 8,041 (4,402) 3,639 (1,107) 2,423 (1,715)	\$	673 (450) (160) (610) 63 251 (141)	(i	Currency Franslation n thousands) 367 (234) (234) 133 (88)	_	(3,256) ————————————————————————————————————	\$	(6,962) 7,357 (4,562) 2,795 (4,167) 2,586 (1,856)
Other comprehensive gain (loss) before reclassifications, net of income tax Amounts reclassified from accumulated other comprehensive loss Net other comprehensive income (loss) Balance, March 31, 2024 Other comprehensive gain (loss) before reclassifications, net of income tax Amounts reclassified from accumulated other comprehensive loss Net other comprehensive income (loss)		Rate Hedges (4,746) 8,041 (4,402) 3,639 (1,107) 2,423 (1,715) 708	\$	673 (450) (160) (610) 63 251 (141) 110	(i	Currency Franslation n thousands) 367 (234) — (234) 133 (88) — (88)	_	(3,256) (3,256) (3,256)	\$	(6,962) 7,357 (4,562) 2,795 (4,167) 2,586 (1,856) 730
Other comprehensive gain (loss) before reclassifications, net of income tax Amounts reclassified from accumulated other comprehensive loss Net other comprehensive income (loss) Balance, March 31, 2024 Other comprehensive gain (loss) before reclassifications, net of income tax Amounts reclassified from accumulated other comprehensive loss Net other comprehensive income (loss) Balance, June 30, 2024		Rate Hedges (4,746) 8,041 (4,402) 3,639 (1,107) 2,423 (1,715)	\$	673 (450) (160) (610) 63 251 (141)	(i	Currency Franslation n thousands) 367 (234) (234) 133 (88)	_	(3,256) ————————————————————————————————————	\$	(6,962) 7,357 (4,562) 2,795 (4,167) 2,586 (1,856)
Other comprehensive gain (loss) before reclassifications, net of income tax Amounts reclassified from accumulated other comprehensive loss Net other comprehensive income (loss) Balance, March 31, 2024 Other comprehensive gain (loss) before reclassifications, net of income tax Amounts reclassified from accumulated other comprehensive loss Net other comprehensive income (loss) Balance, June 30, 2024 Other comprehensive (loss) gain before		Rate Hedges (4,746) 8,041 (4,402) 3,639 (1,107) 2,423 (1,715) 708 (399)	\$	673 (450) (160) (610) 63 251 (141) 110 173	(i	Currency Franslation n thousands) 367 (234) (234) 133 (88) — (88) 45	_	(3,256) (3,256) (3,256)	\$	(6,962) 7,357 (4,562) 2,795 (4,167) 2,586 (1,856) 730 (3,437)
Other comprehensive gain (loss) before reclassifications, net of income tax Amounts reclassified from accumulated other comprehensive loss Net other comprehensive income (loss) Balance, March 31, 2024 Other comprehensive gain (loss) before reclassifications, net of income tax Amounts reclassified from accumulated other comprehensive loss Net other comprehensive income (loss) Balance, June 30, 2024 Other comprehensive (loss) gain before reclassifications, net of income tax		Rate Hedges (4,746) 8,041 (4,402) 3,639 (1,107) 2,423 (1,715) 708	\$	673 (450) (160) (610) 63 251 (141) 110	(ii	Currency Franslation n thousands) 367 (234) — (234) 133 (88) — (88)	_	(3,256) (3,256) (3,256)	\$	(6,962) 7,357 (4,562) 2,795 (4,167) 2,586 (1,856) 730
Other comprehensive gain (loss) before reclassifications, net of income tax Amounts reclassified from accumulated other comprehensive loss Net other comprehensive income (loss) Balance, March 31, 2024 Other comprehensive gain (loss) before reclassifications, net of income tax Amounts reclassified from accumulated other comprehensive loss Net other comprehensive income (loss) Balance, June 30, 2024 Other comprehensive (loss) gain before reclassifications, net of income tax Amounts reclassified from accumulated other		Rate Hedges (4,746) 8,041 (4,402) 3,639 (1,107) 2,423 (1,715) 708 (399) (10,369)	\$	673 (450) (160) (610) 63 251 (141) 110 173	(ii	Currency Franslation n thousands) 367 (234) (234) 133 (88) — (88) 45	_	(3,256) (3,256) (3,256)	<u>\$</u>	(6,962) 7,357 (4,562) 2,795 (4,167) 2,586 (1,856) 730 (3,437) (9,479)
Other comprehensive gain (loss) before reclassifications, net of income tax Amounts reclassified from accumulated other comprehensive loss Net other comprehensive income (loss) Balance, March 31, 2024 Other comprehensive gain (loss) before reclassifications, net of income tax Amounts reclassified from accumulated other comprehensive loss Net other comprehensive income (loss) Balance, June 30, 2024 Other comprehensive (loss) gain before reclassifications, net of income tax		Rate Hedges (4,746) 8,041 (4,402) 3,639 (1,107) 2,423 (1,715) 708 (399)	\$	673 (450) (160) (610) 63 251 (141) 110 173	(ii	Currency Franslation n thousands) 367 (234) (234) 133 (88) — (88) 45	_	(3,256) (3,256) (3,256)	\$	(6,962) 7,357 (4,562) 2,795 (4,167) 2,586 (1,856) 730 (3,437)

NOTE 19: SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Company's chief operating decision making officer ("CODM") is the Company's Chief Executive Officer. Consistent with how the Company evaluates its performance and the way the Company is organized internally; the Company reports its activities in two segments: Engine Services and Component Repair Services. The CODM regularly uses the below financial measures to allocate financial and human resources to individual segments and evaluate segment performance. The CODM also uses these measures in the annual budget and quarterly forecasting processes. The CODM considers budget-to-actual variances on a monthly basis when making decisions about allocating capital and personnel to the segments.

The Company's CODM is regularly provided and evaluates the performance of the Company's segments based on segment Revenue and segment Adjusted EBITDA. Management believes segment Adjusted EBITDA is indicative of operational performance and ongoing profitability and is used to evaluate the operating performance of the Company's segments and for planning and forecasting purposes, including the allocation of resources and capital.

The Company defines Segment Adjusted EBITDA as net income (loss) before interest expense, income tax expense (benefit), depreciation and amortization directly attributable to each operating segment and adjusted for certain non-cash items that the Company may record each period, as well as items not recurring in the ordinary course of business such as acquisition costs, integration and severance costs, refinance fees, business transformation costs and other discrete expenses, when applicable. Expense information is provided to and reviewed by the CODM on a consolidated basis to evaluate cost efficiency and company level performance.

The Company's Engine Services segment provides a full suite of aftermarket services, including maintenance, repair and overhaul, on-wing and field service support, asset management, and engineering and related solutions to customers in the commercial aerospace, military & helicopter, and business aviation end markets. Revenue in the Engine Services segment is primarily derived from the repair and overhaul of a wide variety of gas turbine engines and auxiliary power units that power fixed and rotary wing aircraft. The Company also provides complementary maintenance, repair, upgrade and other related services for airframes and avionics systems in the business aviation and helicopter end markets. Cost of revenue consists primarily of cost of materials, direct labor and overhead.

The Company's Component Repair Services segment provides engine component and accessory repairs to the Commercial Aerospace, Military & Helicopter, and Other, including land and marine, and oil and gas end markets. Revenue in the Component Repair Services segment is derived from the engine piece part and accessory repairs that the Company performs, repair development engineering and other related services, and some engine new part manufacturing. Cost of revenue consists primarily of cost of materials, direct labor and overhead.

The Company's segment disclosure includes intersegment revenues, which primarily consist of subcontract services between segments. The revenue and corresponding cost of revenue are eliminated upon consolidation. The elimination of such intersegment transactions is included within intersegment revenue in the table below. The revenue is eliminated with the segment receiving the subcontract services. The segment providing services retains revenue while the segment receiving the services records the elimination.

The Company does not report total assets by segment for internal or external reporting purposes as the Company's CODM does not assess performance, make strategic decisions or allocate resources based on assets.

The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the same as those described in the summary of significant accounting policies (see Note 2, Summary of Significant Accounting Policies).

Selected financial information for each segment is as follows:

	 Three months ended September 30, 2025							
	 Engine Services		omponent air Services		Total Segments			
		(in i	thousands)					
Revenue from external customers	\$ 1,342,716	\$	155,246	\$	1,497,962			
Intersegment revenue	(20,531)		20,531		_			
Total segment revenue	1,322,185		175,777		1,497,962			
Other segment items (1)	1,156,809		121,802		1,278,611			
Segment Adjusted EBITDA	\$ 165,376	\$	53,975	\$	219,351			
Corporate (2)	 				23,791			
Depreciation and amortization					48,106			
Interest expense					44,566			
Business transformation costs (LEAP and CFM) (3)					3,252			
Non-cash stock compensation expense					4,142			
Integration costs and severance (4)					1,891			
Other (5)					827			
Income before income taxes				\$	92,776			

Other segment items for each reportable segment primarily includes cost of sales and other selling, general and administrative expenses

Represents professional fees related to business transformation, secondary offering costs and quarterly management fees payable to Carlyle Investment Management L.L.C. and Beamer Investment Inc. under consulting services agreements, representation and warranty insurance costs associated with acquisitions, that are the result of other, non-comparable events to measure operating performance as these events arise outside of the Company's ordinary course of continuing operations. See Note 13, "Related Party Transactions" for descriptions of the consulting services agreements with Carlyle Investment Management L.L.C. and Beamer Investment Inc.

	 Nine months ended September 30, 2025						
	Engine Services		omponent air Services		Total Segments		
		(in t	thousands)				
Revenue from external customers	\$ 4,002,693	\$	459,800	\$	4,462,493		
Intersegment revenue	 (61,518)		61,518		_		
Total segment revenue	3,941,175		521,318		4,462,493		
Other segment items (1)	3,423,281		368,342		3,791,623		
Segment Adjusted EBITDA	\$ 517,894	\$	152,976	\$	670,870		
Corporate (2)					72,446		
Depreciation and amortization					145,329		
Interest expense					132,192		
Business transformation costs (LEAP and CFM) (3)					21,433		
Non-cash stock compensation expense					10,017		
Integration costs and severance (4)					4,631		
Other (5)					15,179		
Income before income taxes				\$	269,643		

⁽¹⁾ Other segment items for each reportable segment primarily includes cost of sales and other selling, general and administrative expenses

⁽²⁾ Corporate primarily consists of costs related to executive and staff functions, including Information Technology, Human Resources, Legal, Finance, Marketing, Corporate Supply Chain and Corporate Engineering Services finance, which benefit the enterprise as a whole. These costs are primarily related to the general management of these functions on a corporate level and the design and development of programs, policies, and procedures that are then implemented in the individual segments, with each segment bearing its own cost of implementation. The Corporate function also includes expenses associated with the Company's debt.

⁽³⁾ Represents new product industrialization costs with the business transformation of the LEAP 1A/1B engine line in San Antonio, Texas and the expansion of the Company's CFM56 capabilities into Dallas, Texas.

⁽⁴⁾ Represents integration costs incurred, including any facility or platform consolidation associated with the integration of an acquisition that does not meet capitalization criteria and severance related to reduction in workforce or acquisitions. Examples of integration costs may include lease breakage or run-off fees, consulting costs, demolition costs or training costs.

⁽²⁾ Corporate primarily consists of costs related to executive and staff functions, including Information Technology, Human Resources, Legal, Finance, Marketing, Corporate Supply Chain and Corporate Engineering Services finance, which benefit the enterprise as a whole. These costs are primarily related to the general management of these functions on a corporate level and the design and development of programs, policies, and procedures that are then implemented in the

- individual segments, with each segment bearing its own cost of implementation. The Corporate function also includes expenses associated with the Company's debt.
- (3) Represents new product industrialization costs with the business transformation of the LEAP 1A/1B engine line in San Antonio, Texas and the expansion of the Company's CFM56 capabilities into Dallas, Texas.
- 49 Represents integration costs incurred, including any facility or platform consolidation associated with the integration of an acquisition that does not meet capitalization criteria and severance related to reduction in workforce or acquisitions. Examples of integration costs may include lease breakage or run-off fees, consulting costs, demolition costs or training costs.
- (5) Represents professional fees related to business transformation, secondary offering costs, loss on disposals and quarterly management fees payable to Carlyle Investment Management L.L.C. and Beamer Investment Inc. under consulting services agreements, representation and warranty insurance costs associated with acquisitions, that are the result of other, non-comparable events to measure operating performance as these events arise outside of the Company's ordinary course of continuing operations. See Note 13, "Related Party Transactions" for descriptions of the consulting services agreements with Carlyle Investment Management L.L.C. and Beamer Investment Inc.

		Three months ended September 30, 2024						
		Engine Services	Component Repair Services		Total Segments			
			(in thousands)					
Revenue from external customers	\$	1,109,804	\$ 134,82	3 \$	1,244,627			
Intersegment revenue		(19,495)	19,49	5	_			
Total segment revenue		1,090,309	154,31	3	1,244,627			
Other segment items (1)		942,895	113,55	9	1,056,454			
Segment Adjusted EBITDA	\$	147,414	\$ 40,75	9 \$	188,173			
Corporate (2)	<u> </u>				19,756			
Depreciation and amortization					47,145			
Interest expense					79,898			
Business transformation costs (LEAP and CFM) (3)					10,535			
Refinancing costs					1,503			
Acquisition costs					1,323			
Integration costs and severance (4)					308			
Other ⁽⁵⁾					11,058			
Income before income taxes				\$	16,647			

⁽¹⁾ Other segment items for each reportable segment primarily includes cost of sales and other selling, general and administrative expenses

⁽²⁾ Corporate primarily consists of costs related to executive and staff functions, including Information Technology, Human Resources, Legal, Finance, Marketing, Corporate Supply Chain and Corporate Engineering Services finance, which benefit the enterprise as a whole. These costs are primarily related to the general management of these functions on a corporate level and the design and development of programs, policies, and procedures that are then implemented in the individual segments, with each segment bearing its own cost of implementation. The Corporate function also includes expenses associated with the Company's debt.

⁽³⁾ Represents new product industrialization costs with the business transformation of the LEAP 1A/1B engine line in San Antonio, Texas and the expansion of the Company's CFM56 capabilities into Dallas, Texas.

Represents integration costs incurred, including any facility or platform consolidation associated with the integration of an acquisition that does not meet capitalization criteria and severance related to reduction in workforce or acquisitions. Examples of integration costs may include lease breakage or run-off fees, consulting costs, demolition costs or training costs.

⁽⁵⁾ Represents quarterly management fees payable to Carlyle Investment Management L.L.C. and Beamer Investment Inc. under consulting services agreements, representation and warranty insurance costs associated with acquisitions, that are the result of other, non-comparable events to measure operating performance as these events arise outside of the Company's ordinary course of continuing operations. See Note 13, "Related Party Transactions" for descriptions of the consulting services agreements with Carlyle Investment Management L.L.C. and Beamer Investment Inc.

		Nine months ended September 30, 2024							
		Engine Services		Component epair Services		Total Segments			
	-	Services		thousands)		segments			
Revenue from external customers	\$	3,448,181	\$	379,367	\$	3,827,548			
Intersegment revenue		(49,019)		49,019		_			
Total segment revenue		3,399,162		428,386		3,827,548			
Other segment items (1)		2,948,067		317,317		3,265,384			
Segment Adjusted EBITDA	\$	451,095	\$	111,069	\$	562,164			
Corporate (2)						57,797			
Depreciation and amortization						140,021			
Interest expense						235,496			
Business transformation costs (LEAP and CFM) (3)						33,626			
Refinancing costs						6,441			
Loss on debt extinguishment						3,577			
Acquisition costs						1,323			
Integration costs and severance (4)						925			
Other (5)						19,841			
Income before income taxes					\$	63,117			

⁽¹⁾ Other segment items for each reportable segment primarily includes cost of sales and other selling, general and administrative expenses.

The following table presents revenues from external customers by geographic area based on location of the customer:

	Т	Three months ended September 30,				Nine months ended September 30,				
		2025		2024		2025		2024		
		(in thou			usands,)				
United States	\$	796,983	\$	741,814	\$	2,449,583	\$	2,258,559		
United Kingdom		114,453		126,319		381,902		434,536		
Canada		189,125		147,521		575,739		443,091		
Rest of Europe (1)		145,430		100,907		387,118		284,358		
Asia (1)		146,087		44,790		358,979		159,022		
Rest of the world (1)		105,884		83,276		309,172		247,982		
Total revenue	\$	1,497,962	\$	1,244,627	\$	4,462,493	\$	3,827,548		

⁽¹⁾ Countries grouped within Rest of Europe, Asia, and Rest of world are individually immaterial as compared to total revenue with no country representing more than 3% of total revenue for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2025 and 2024.

⁽²⁾ Corporate primarily consists of costs related to executive and staff functions, including Information Technology, Human Resources, Legal, Finance, Marketing, Corporate Supply Chain and Corporate Engineering Services finance, which benefit the enterprise as a whole. These costs are primarily related to the general management of these functions on a corporate level and the design and development of programs, policies, and procedures that are then implemented in the individual segments, with each segment bearing its own cost of implementation. The Corporate function also includes expenses associated with the Company's debt

⁽³⁾ Represents new product industrialization costs with the business transformation of the LEAP 1A/1B engine line in San Antonio, Texas and the expansion of the Company's CFM56 capabilities into Dallas, Texas.

⁽⁴⁾ Represents integration costs incurred, including any facility or platform consolidation associated with the integration of an acquisition that does not meet capitalization criteria and severance related to reduction in workforce or acquisitions. Examples of integration costs may include lease breakage or run-off fees, consulting costs, demolition costs or training costs.

Represents quarterly management fees payable to Carlyle Investment Management L.L.C. and Beamer Investment Inc. under consulting services agreements, representation and warranty insurance costs associated with acquisitions, that are the result of other, non-comparable events to measure operating performance as these events arise outside of the Company's ordinary course of continuing operations. See Note 13, "Related Party Transactions" for descriptions of the consulting services agreements with Carlyle Investment Management L.L.C. and Beamer Investment Inc.

ITEM 2. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

You should read the following discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations together with our unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements and related notes thereto included in this Quarterly Report and our audited consolidated financial statements and related notes thereto for the year ended December 31, 2024, included in our 2024 Form 10-K. Some of the information included in this discussion and analysis or set forth elsewhere in this Quarterly Report, including information with respect to our plans and strategy for our business, includes forward-looking statements that involve risks and uncertainties you should review about our business. Our future results and financial condition may differ materially from those we currently anticipate. You should review the "Cautionary Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements" section of this Quarterly Report and the "Risk Factors" section of our 2024 Form 10-K for a discussion of important factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from the results described in or implied by the forward-looking statements contained in the following discussion and analysis. For purposes of this section, references to the "Company," "we," "us," and "our" refer to StandardAero, Inc. and its subsidiaries.

Overview

We believe that we are the world's largest independent, pure-play provider of aerospace engine aftermarket services for fixed and rotary wing aircraft, serving the commercial, military and business aviation end markets. We provide a comprehensive suite of critical, value-added aftermarket solutions, including scheduled and unscheduled engine maintenance, repair and overhaul, engine component repair, on-wing and field service support, asset management and engineering solutions. We serve a crucial role in the engine aftermarket value chain, connecting engine OEMs with aircraft operators through our aftermarket services, maintaining longstanding relationships with both. We command a leading reputation that is based upon our strong track record of safety, reliability and operational performance built over our more than 100 years of successful operations in the aerospace aftermarket.

Operating Segments

We manage our business in line with our service offerings with two reportable segments: Engine Services and Component Repair Services.

Our Engine Services segment provides a full suite of aftermarket services, including maintenance, repair and overhaul, on-wing and field service support, asset management, and engineering and related solutions to customers in the commercial aerospace, military and helicopter, and business aviation end markets. Revenue in the Engine Services segment is primarily derived from the repair and overhaul of a wide variety of gas turbine engines and auxiliary power units that power fixed and rotary wing aircraft. We also provide complementary maintenance, repair, upgrade and other related services for airframes and avionics systems in the business aviation and helicopter end markets. Cost of revenue consists primarily of cost of materials, direct labor and overhead.

Our Component Repair Services segment provides engine component and accessory repairs to commercial aerospace, military and other end markets. Revenue in the Component Repair Services segment is derived from the engine piece part and accessory repairs that we perform, repair development engineering and other related services, and some engine new part manufacturing. Cost of revenue consists primarily of cost of materials, direct labor and overhead.

Key Factors and Trends Affecting Our Business

Manufacturer specifications, government regulations and military maintenance regimens generally require that aircraft and engines undergo aftermarket servicing at regular intervals or upon the occurrence of certain events during the serviceable life of each asset. As a result, the aggregate volume of services required for any particular engine platform is a function of four factors: (i) the number of aircraft and engines in operation (the "installed base"), (ii) the age of the installed base, (iii) the reliability of the installed based and (iv) the utilization rate of the installed base.

The number of aircraft in operation and the utilization of those aircraft are generally tied to global air travel over the long-term, which has historically grown in excess of gross domestic product driven by secular tailwinds such as globalization, rising middle class population and wealth, increasing demand for leisure travel, growth in corporate earnings and e-commerce and technological advancements in aviation. The age and utilization of the existing installed base have increased as supply chain issues and regulatory constraints delay the delivery of new aircraft. Engine aftermarket services demand is also expected to further increase through the remainder of the decade due to upcoming shop visits resulting from a large number of engines delivered in the 2010s continuing to age and entering prime maintenance periods. In the military and helicopter end market, ongoing geopolitical tensions continue to drive significant defense investment. In the business aviation end market, this strong fleet growth is expected to drive a continued increase in demand for business jet engine maintenance services.

While the recent supply chain disruptions across our end markets are causing older aircraft and engines to remain in service longer and increasing their maintenance demand, our business also depends on maintaining a sufficient supply of parts, components and raw materials to meet the requirements of our customers. In recent years, we have experienced supply chain delays that impacted the availability of parts and ultimately engine throughput across all of our end markets. Any disruption to our supply chain and business operations, or to our suppliers' supply chains and business operations, could have adverse effects on our ability to provide aftermarket support to our customers timely and efficiently and may increase our working capital as we wait for parts for the engines we service. Any such disruptions could adversely affect our business, results of operations and financial condition. See "Part I. Item 1A. Risk Factors—Risks Related to Our Business and Industry—We depend on certain component parts and material suppliers for our engine repair and overhaul operations, and any supply chain disruptions or loss of key suppliers could adversely affect our business, results of operations and financial condition" in our 2024 Form 10-K. In addition, the Company continues to closely monitor the implementation of tariffs, which has the potential to disrupt global trade and existing supply chains and impose additional costs on our business. While negotiations regarding tariffs are ongoing, if the resulting environment of retaliatory tariffs or other practices of additional trade restrictions or barriers require us to increase prices for our products or services, this could lead to decreased demand for our products and services, which would negatively impact our results of operations, cash flows, and financial condition. While tariff levels and related trade actions remain fluid, we expect to pass associated cost increases through to customers where possible, though timing delays may impact margins. However, factors such as the Company's operations and supply chains, which are primarily located in regions where our products are sold, along with the applicability of the United States-Mexico-Canada Agreement, help reduce our exposure to trade disruptions, but there can be no assurance that these factors, or our pricing actions, will be effective mitigants given the uncertain environment. See "Part I, Item 1A. Risk Factors-Risks Related to Our Business and Industry-United States trade policies that restrict imports or increase import tariffs may have a material adverse effect on our business" in our 2024 Form 10-K.

Key Factors Affecting the Comparability of Our Results of Operations

Our results have been affected by, and may in the future be affected by, the following factors, which must be understood in order to assess the comparability of our period-to-period financial performance and condition.

Recent Developments

Initial Public Offering

On October 2, 2024, the Company completed its initial public offering ("IPO") of ordinary shares at a price to the public of \$24.00 per share ("Common Stock"). The offering included 69,000,000 shares of Common Stock, of which, the Company issued and sold 53,250,000 shares and the selling stockholders sold 15,750,000 shares, including 9,000,000 shares issued pursuant to the full exercise of the underwriters' option to purchase additional shares from the selling stockholders. The shares of Common Stock sold in the IPO were registered under the Securities Act pursuant to a Registration Statement on Form S-1, which was declared effective by the SEC on October 1, 2024. The IPO generated net proceeds from the primary issuance of shares of \$1,202.8 million after deducting underwriting discounts and commissions of approximately \$67.1 million and estimated offering expenses of \$8.1 million.

March Secondary Offering

In March 2025, two of the Company's stockholders (the "Selling Stockholders"), affiliates of The Carlyle Group Inc. ("Carlyle") and GIC Private Limited ("GIC"), completed a public offering of an aggregate of 36,000,000 shares of Common Stock at a price to the public of \$28.00 per share. The Selling Stockholders received all of the net proceeds from this offering. No shares were sold by the Company.

May Secondary Offering

In May 2025, the Selling Stockholders completed a public offering of an aggregate of 34,500,000 shares of Common Stock (including full exercise by the underwriters of their option to purchase up to an additional 4,500,000 shares) at a price to the public of \$28.00 per share. The Selling Stockholders received all of the net proceeds from this offering. No shares were sold by the Company. As of September 30, 2025, Carlyle and GIC own approximately 45.6% and 10.3% of our outstanding Common Stock, respectively.

Business Combinations

To continue to grow our business, we are continually acquiring and investing in companies that share our common goal of providing the market with aftermarket services across multiple engine platforms.

On August 23, 2024, we acquired Aero Turbine, Inc. ("Aero Turbine"), a provider of engine component repair and other value-added engine aftermarket services for U.S. and international customers for an estimated purchase price of approximately \$132.0 million, comprising an initial cash purchase price of \$116.8 million and \$15.2 million representing the estimated fair value of additional consideration contingently payable based upon the achievement of gross profit in excess of certain gross profit targets for the period from January 1, 2024, to December 31, 2026, subject to post-closing adjustments. The maximum contingent consideration payable from the Company to the seller is \$21.0 million. The acquisition was funded with borrowings under the Prior ABL Credit Facility, which was repaid on September 6, 2024 with incremental borrowings from the Prior 2024 Term Loan B-1 Facility and the Prior 2024 Term Loan B-2 Facility.

Public Company Expenses

We have incurred, and expect to continue to incur, certain professional fees and other expenses as part of our transition to a public company not recurring in the ordinary course of business. As a public company, we are implementing additional procedures and processes for the purpose of addressing the standards and requirements applicable to public companies, for which we expect to incur additional recurring expenses. In particular, our accounting, legal and personnel-related expenses and directors' and officers' insurance costs have increased as we establish more comprehensive compliance and governance functions, establish, maintain and review internal control over financial reporting in accordance with the Sarbanes-Oxley Act and prepare and distribute periodic reports in accordance with SEC rules. Our financial statements following the IPO have reflected and will continue to reflect the impact of these expenses. See "Part I. Item 1A. Risk Factors—Risks Related to Management and Employees—The requirements of being a public company may strain our resources, increase our costs, divert management's attention, and affect our ability to attract and retain executive management and qualified board members" in our 2024 Form 10-K.

Key Performance Indicators and Non-GAAP Financial Measures

We use certain non-GAAP key performance indicators to evaluate our business operations, including Adjusted EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA Margin.

The non-GAAP financial measures presented in this Quarterly Report are supplemental measures of our performance that we believe help investors understand our financial condition and operating results and assess our future prospects. We believe that presenting these non-GAAP financial measures, in addition to the corresponding GAAP financial measures, are important supplemental measures that exclude non-cash or other items that may not be indicative of or are unrelated to our core operating results and the overall health of our company. We believe that these non-GAAP financial measures provide investors greater transparency to the information used by management for its operational decision-making and allow investors to see our results "through the eyes of management." We further believe that providing this information assists our investors in understanding our operating performance and the methodology used by management to evaluate and measure such performance. When read in conjunction with our GAAP results, these non-GAAP financial measures provide a baseline for analyzing trends in our underlying businesses and can be used by management as one basis for financial, operational and planning decisions. Finally, these measures are often used by analysts and other interested parties to evaluate companies in our industry.

Management recognizes that these non-GAAP financial measures have limitations, including that they may be calculated differently by other companies or may be used under different circumstances or for different purposes, thereby affecting their comparability from company to company. In order to compensate for these and the other limitations discussed below, management does not consider these measures in isolation from or as alternatives to the comparable financial measures determined in accordance with GAAP. Readers should review the reconciliations below and should not rely on any single financial measure to evaluate our business. The reasons we use these non-GAAP financial measures and the reconciliations to their most directly comparable GAAP financial measures follow.

Adjusted EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA Margin

We define Adjusted EBITDA as net income before interest expense, income tax expense, depreciation and amortization, further adjusted for certain non-cash items that we may record each period, as well as items not recurring in the ordinary course of business such as acquisition costs, integration and severance costs, refinancing fees, business transformation costs and other discrete expenses, when applicable. We define Adjusted EBITDA Margin as Adjusted EBITDA divided by revenue. We believe that Adjusted EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA Margin are important metrics for management and investors as they remove the impact of items that we do not believe are indicative of our core operating results or the overall health of our company and allows for consistent comparison of our operating results over time and relative to our peers.

The following table presents a reconciliation of net income and net income margin to Adjusted EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA Margin, respectively:

	_ 1	Three Months Ended September 30,			Nine Months Ended			d September 30,	
		2025		2024		2025		2024	
				(in thousands, exce		0 /			
Net income	\$	68,120	\$	16,436	\$	198,776	\$	25,027	
Income tax expense		24,656		211		70,867		38,090	
Depreciation and amortization		48,106		47,145		145,329		140,021	
Interest expense		44,566		79,898		132,192		235,496	
Business transformation costs (LEAP and		2.252		10.525		21 422		22.626	
CFM) (1)		3,252		10,535		21,433		33,626	
Refinancing costs		_		1,503		_		6,441	
Loss on debt extinguishment		_		_		_		3,577	
Non-cash stock compensation expense		4,142		_		10,017		_	
Integration costs and severance (2)		1,891		308		4,631		925	
Acquisition costs (3)		_		1,323		_		1,323	
Insurance recovery		(3,000)		_		(3,000)		_	
Loss on disposals		_		_		2,764		_	
Secondary offering costs		570		_		4,430		_	
Other (4)		3,257		11,058		10,985		19,841	
Adjusted EBITDA	\$	195,560	\$	168,417	\$	598,424	\$	504,367	
Revenue	\$	1,497,962	\$	1,244,627	\$	4,462,493	\$	3,827,548	
Net income margin		4.5%		1.3%		4.5%		0.7%	
Adjusted EBITDA Margin		13.1%		13.5%		13.4%		13.2%	

⁽¹⁾ Represents new product industrialization costs with the business transformation of the LEAP 1A/1B engine line in San Antonio, Texas and the expansion of the Company's CFM56 capabilities into Dallas, Texas.

Key Components of Results of Operations

The following discussion provides a brief description of certain items that appear in our consolidated financial statements and the general factors that impact these items.

Revenue

Revenue consists of gross sales principally resulting from the engine and component repair services that we perform for commercial, military and business aviation fixed wing and rotary wing aircraft engines, as well as aeroderivative engines for the land and marine and other markets. Within these end markets, our Engine Services segment primarily provides a variety of value-added services in support of the maintenance, repair, testing and recertification of aerospace and aeroderivative engines. Our Component Repair Services segment supports commercial aerospace, military aerospace, land and marine and other markets with engine piece part repair and accessory repair.

Cost of revenue

Cost of revenue primarily consists of direct costs required to provide our services. These costs include the cost of materials, direct labor for inspection and disassembly, assembly and repair, rental engines, subcontracted services and overhead costs directly related to the performance of aftermarket services. Overhead costs include the cost of our facilities, engineering, quality and production management,

⁽²⁾ Represents integration costs incurred, including any facility or platform consolidation associated with the integration of an acquisition that does not meet capitalization criteria and severance related to reduction in workforce or acquisitions. Examples of integration costs may include lease breakage or run-off fees, consulting costs, demolition costs or training costs.

⁽³⁾ Represents transaction costs incurred in connection with completed acquisitions, including legal and professional fees, debt arrangement fees and other third-party costs.

⁽⁴⁾ Represents other costs not recurring in the ordinary course of business including professional fees related to business transformation and quarterly management fees payable to Carlyle Investment Management L.L.C. and Beamer Investment Inc. under consulting services agreements, representation and warranty insurance costs associated with acquisitions, and other non-comparable events to measure operating performance as these events arise outside of the Company's ordinary course of continuing operations. See Note 13, "Related Party Transactions" to the Company's condensed consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for descriptions of the consulting services agreements with Carlyle Investment Management L.L.C. and Beamer Investment Inc.

including indirect labor supporting production, depreciation of equipment and facilities and amortization of the costs associated with OEM authorizations and licenses. The cost of materials accounts for the largest portion of our cost of revenue.

Selling, general and administrative expense

Selling, general and administrative ("SG&A") expense primarily consists of expenses related to the selling of our services to our customers and maintaining a global sales support network, including salaries of our direct sales force. General costs to support the administrative requirements of the business such as finance, accounting, information technology, human resources and general management are also included.

Amortization of intangible assets

Intangible assets are amortized over the estimated useful life for customer relationships, trademarks and technology and other assets.

Acquisition costs

Acquisition costs primarily consist of professional service fees and other third-party costs incurred as part of the transaction process. Acquisition costs do not include any costs associated with the issuance of debt as these are capitalized and amortized over the term of the debt.

Interest expense

Interest expense primarily consists of interest on our debt obligations, including the amortization of debt discount and deferred finance charges. Interest expense also includes the portion of the gain or loss on our interest-rate swap and interest-rate cap agreements that is reclassified into earnings.

Refinancing costs

Refinancing costs primarily consists of costs incurred in the prior year for an amendment to the Prior Credit Agreement in March 2024.

Loss on debt extinguishments

Loss on debt extinguishments incurred in the prior year primarily consists of the write-off of unamortized charges related to the extinguished portions of the Prior 2023 Term Loan Facilities and the redeemed portions of the Prior Senior Notes.

Income tax expense

Our provision for income tax expense is based on permanent book/tax differences and statutory tax rates in the various jurisdictions in which we operate. Significant estimates and judgments are required in determining the provision for income taxes.

Results of Operations

Comparison of the Three Months Ended September 30, 2025 and 2024

The following table sets forth our consolidated statements of operations data for the three months ended September 30, 2025 and 2024:

	Three months ended September 30,			Change			
		2025		2024		\$	%
				(in thousands, exc	ept pe	ercentages)	
Revenue	\$	1,497,962	\$	1,244,627	\$	253,335	20.4%
Cost of revenue		1,274,803		1,058,396		216,407	20.4%
Selling, general and administrative expense		60,944		62,895		(1,951)	(3.1)%
Amortization of intangible assets		24,873		23,965		908	3.8%
Acquisition costs		_		1,323		(1,323)	(100.0)%
Operating income		137,342		98,048		39,294	40.1%
Interest expense		44,566		79,898		(35,332)	(44.2)%
Refinancing costs		_		1,503		(1,503)	(100.0)%
Income before income taxes		92,776		16,647		76,129	457.3%
Income tax expense		24,656		211		24,445	11,585.3%
Net income	\$	68,120	\$	16,436	\$	51,684	314.5%

Revenue. Revenue increased \$253.3 million, or 20.4%, to \$1,498.0 million for the three months ended September 30, 2025 from \$1,244.6 million for the three months ended September 30, 2024. The increase was driven by both the Engine Services and Component Repair Services segments, with continued strength across the commercial aerospace and business aviation end markets, which increased 17.8% and 28.0%, respectively, compared to the three months ended September 30, 2024. The military and helicopter end market increased 21.1% compared to the prior year period, including contribution from the acquisition of Aero Turbine on August 23, 2024, during the three months ended September 30, 2025.

Cost of revenue. Cost of revenue increased \$216.4 million, or 20.4%, to \$1,274.8 million for the three months ended September 30, 2025 from \$1058.4 million for the three months ended September 30, 2024. This increase was driven by a growth in volumes, which drove corresponding higher material and direct labor expenses, as well as increased other overhead costs directly related to the performance of aftermarket services, in addition to the cost of revenue attributable to the acquisition of Aero Turbine on August 23, 2024.

The following table sets forth our total cost of revenue for the three months ended September 30, 2025 and 2024:

	 Three Months Ended September 30,				
	 2025		2024		
	(in tho	usands)			
Material	\$ 892,199	\$	747,084		
Labor	294,136		221,823		
Other	88,468		89,489		
Total cost of revenue	\$ 1,274,803	\$	1,058,396		

Selling, general and administrative expense. SG&A expense was \$60.9 million and \$62.9 million for the three months ended September 30, 2025 and 2024, respectively, and was 4.1% and 5.1% of revenue for the three months ended September 30, 2025 and 2024, respectively. The \$2.0 million decrease in SG&A expense was primarily due to a decline of \$5.6 million in professional services fees incurred year over year, in advance of the company's initial public offering on October 2, 2024, as well as a \$3.6 million insurance recovery which was recognized in the current period. Partially offsetting these favorable items was \$4.1 million in stock compensation expense with no similar charge incurred in the prior year period, and a \$3.3 million increase in personnel costs largely attributable to our transition to a public company.

Amortization of intangible assets. Amortization of intangible assets was \$24.9 million and \$24.0 million for the three months ended September 30, 2025 and 2024, respectively. The increase of \$0.9 million, or 3.8%, was primarily driven by the intangible assets allocated to customer relationships resulting from the Aero Turbine acquisition on August 23, 2024. Due to the timing of the Aero Turbine acquisition, there was lower impact on total amortization expense for the three months ended September 30, 2024, due to the timing of the transaction.

Acquisition costs. Acquisition costs of \$1.3 million for the three months ended September 30, 2024 were incurred primarily due to the acquisition of Aero Turbine on August 23, 2024. There have been no acquisitions during the three months ended September 30, 2025.

Interest expense. Interest expense decreased \$35.3 million or 44.2% from \$79.9 million for the three months ended September 30, 2024 to \$44.6 million for the three months ended September 30, 2025. This decrease in interest expense was largely driven by (i) the repayment of the Prior Senior Notes in full on October 3, 2024 concurrent with the Company's IPO, and (ii) entrance into the New Credit Agreement on October 31, 2024 providing for the New 2024 Term Loan Facilities and the New 2024 Revolving Credit Facility and the use of the proceeds to repay in full amounts outstanding under the Prior Credit Agreement and the Prior ABL Credit Agreement, terminating each of the debt facilities thereunder, and resulting in a weighted average interest rate of borrowings for the three months ended September 30, 2025 of 6.8% compared to 9.0% for the three months ended September 30, 2024. See "—Liquidity and Capital Resources" for further discussion of our debt and financing activities.

Refinancing costs. Refinancing costs of \$1.5 million associated with the modified portion of the Prior Credit Agreement amendment were incurred during the three months ended September 30, 2024 with no similar charges in the current year.

Income tax expense. The incremental income tax expense was \$24.7 million for the three months ended September 30, 2025, as compared to \$0.2 million for the three months ended September 30, 2024. This was an increase of \$24.5 million. This increase in tax expense was due primarily to the increase in the three months ended pretax income which was \$92.8M at September 30, 2025 compared to \$16.6 million at September 30, 2024, which is an increase of \$76.2 million. Additionally, for the three months ended September 30, 2024, the tax expense recorded was only \$0.2 million. This was due to the estimated annual effective tax rate going from 81.5% in the three months ended June 30, 2024 to 60.4% in the three months ended September 30, 2024 which was driven by the reduction of the forecasted valuation allowance on US interest expense limitation (IRC 163(j)). The tax expense, and corresponding effective tax rates for the three months ended September 30, 2025 and 2024, were higher than the statutory rate of 21.0% primarily due to the Global Intangible Low-taxed Income ("GILTI") provision which was enacted in 2017 as part of the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act. Further, for the three months ended September 30, 2024, the partial valuation allowance recorded against our interest expense carryforward deferred tax asset under Section 163(j) of the Internal Revenue Code also was a driver of the effective tax rate exceeding the statutory rate.

Comparison of the Nine Months Ended September 30, 2025 and 2024

The following table sets forth our consolidated statements of operations data for the nine months ended September 30, 2025 and 2024:

	N	Nine months ended September 30,				Change		
		2025		2024		\$	%	
				(in thousands, exc	cept p	ercentages)		
Revenue	\$	4,462,493	\$	3,827,548	\$	634,945	16.6%	
Cost of revenue		3,785,429		3,275,300		510,129	15.6%	
Selling, general and administrative expense		201,421		171,744		29,677	17.3%	
Amortization of intangible assets		73,808		70,550		3,258	4.6%	
Acquisition costs		_		1,323		(1,323)	(100.0)%	
Operating income		401,835		308,631		93,204	30.2%	
Interest expense		132,192		235,496		(103,304)	(43.9)%	
Refinancing costs		_		6,441		(6,441)	(100.0)%	
Loss on debt extinguishment		_		3,577		(3,577)	(100.0)%	
Income before income taxes		269,643		63,117		206,526	327.2%	
Income tax expense		70,867		38,090		32,777	86.1%	
Net income	\$	198,776	\$	25,027	\$	173,749	694.2%	

Revenue. Revenue increased \$634.9 million, or 16.6%, to \$4,462.5 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2025 from \$3,827.5 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2024. The increase was driven by both the Engine Services and Component Repair Services segments, with continued strength across the commercial aerospace and business aviation end markets, which both increased 16.4%, compared to the prior year period. The military and helicopter end market increased 14.1% compared to the prior year period, including contribution from the acquisition of Aero Turbine on August 23, 2024.

Cost of revenue. Cost of revenue increased \$510.1 million, or 15.6%, to \$3,785.4 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2025 from \$3,275.3 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2024. This increase was driven by a growth in volumes, which drove corresponding higher material and direct labor expenses, as well as increased other overhead costs directly related to the performance of aftermarket services, in addition to the cost of revenue attributable to the acquisition of Aero Turbine on August 23, 2024.

The following table sets forth our total cost of revenue for the nine months ended September 30, 2025 and 2024:

	_	Nine Months Ended September 30,					
		2	2025		2024		
Material	\$	\$	2,676,228	\$	2,348,050		
Labor			844,986		673,923		
Other			264,215		253,327		
Total cost of revenue	\$	\$	3,785,429	\$	3,275,300		

Selling, general and administrative expense. SG&A expense was \$201.4 million and \$171.7 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2025 and 2024, respectively, and was 4.5% and 4.5% of revenue for the nine months ended September 30, 2025 and 2024, respectively. The \$29.7 million increase in SG&A expense was primarily due to \$10.0 million in stock compensation expense with no similar charge incurred in the prior year period, a \$9.8 million increase in personnel costs largely attributable to our transition to a public company, a \$5.8 million increase in incentive compensation expense, and a \$2.9 million loss on disposals in the current period with no similar charges incurred in the prior year period.

Amortization of intangible assets. Amortization of intangible assets was \$73.8 million and \$70.6 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2025 and 2024, respectively. The increase of \$3.3 million, or 4.6%, was primarily driven by the intangible assets allocated to customer relationships resulting from the Aero Turbine acquisition on August 23, 2024. During the nine months ended September 30, 2024, the cost base of customer relationships increased due to the Aero Turbine acquisition; however, this had minimal impact on total amortization expense due to the timing of the transaction.

Acquisition costs. Acquisition costs of \$1.3 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2024 were incurred primarily due to the Aero Turbine acquisition on August 23, 2024. There have been no acquisitions during the nine months ended September 30, 2025.

Interest expense. Interest expense decreased \$103.3 million, or 43.9%, from \$235.5 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2024 to \$132.2 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2025. This decrease in interest expense was largely driven by (i) the repayment of the Prior Senior Notes in full on October 3, 2024 concurrent with the Company's IPO, and (ii) entrance into the New Credit Agreement on October 31, 2024 providing for the New 2024 Term Loan Facilities and the New 2024 Revolving Credit Facility and the use of the proceeds to repay in full amounts outstanding under the Prior Credit Agreement and the Prior ABL Credit Agreement, terminating each of the debt facilities thereunder, and, resulting in a weighted average interest rate of borrowings for the nine months ended September 30, 2025 of 6.9% compared to 8.9% for the nine months ended September 30, 2024. See "—Liquidity and Capital Resources" for further discussion of our debt and financing activities.

Refinancing costs. Refinancing costs of \$6.4 million associated with the modified portion of the Prior Credit Agreement amendments in March and September 2024 were incurred during the nine months ended September 30, 2024, with no similar charges incurred in the nine months ended September 30, 2025.

Loss on debt extinguishments. A \$3.6 million loss on debt extinguishments was recorded during the nine months ended September 30, 2024 due to the write-off of unamortized deferred finance charges and debt discount related to the extinguished portion of the Prior 2023 Term Loan Facilities and redeemed portion of the Prior Senior Notes related to the refinancing activity, with no similar charges incurred in the nine months ended September 30, 2025.

Income tax expense. Income tax expense was \$70.9 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2025, as compared to \$38.1 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2024. This was an increase of \$32.8 million, or 86.1%. This increase in tax expense was due primarily to the increase in the year to date pretax income which was \$269.6 million at September 30, 2025 compared to \$63.1 million at September 30, 2024, which is an increase of \$206.5 million. The tax expense, and corresponding effective tax rates for the nine months ended September 30, 2025 and 2024, were higher than the statutory rate of 21.0% primarily due to the Global Intangible Low-taxed Income ("GILTI") provision which was enacted in 2017 as part of the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act. Further, for the nine months ended September 30, 2024, the partial valuation allowance recorded against our interest expense carryforward deferred tax asset under Section 163(j) of the Internal Revenue Code also was a driver of the effective tax rate exceeding the statutory rate.

Segment Results

The following table presents revenue by segment, Segment Adjusted EBITDA and Segment Adjusted EBITDA Margin:

	Three Months Ended September 30,			1	Nine Months End	led Se	ptember 30,	
	_	2025		2024		2025		2024
				(in thousands,	ехсері	percentages)		
Engine Services								
Segment Revenue	\$	1,322,185	\$	1,090,309	\$	3,941,175	\$	3,399,162
Segment Adjusted EBITDA	\$	165,376	\$	147,414	\$	517,894	\$	451,095
Segment Adjusted EBITDA Margin		12.5%)	13.5%		13.1%)	13.3%
Component Repair Services								
Segment Revenue	\$	175,777	\$	154,318	\$	521,318	\$	428,386
Segment Adjusted EBITDA	\$	53,975	\$	40,759	\$	152,976	\$	111,069
Segment Adjusted EBITDA Margin		30.7%)	26.4%		29.3%)	25.9%

For a discussion of Segment Adjusted EBITDA, see Note 19, "Segment Information" to our condensed consolidated financial statements included in this Quarterly Report.

Comparison of the Three Months Ended September 30, 2025 and 2024

Engine Services

Engine Services segment revenue increased \$231.9 million, or 21.3%, to \$1,322.2 million for the three months ended September 30, 2025, compared to \$1,090.3 million for the prior year period. The increase was driven by continued strong commercial aerospace end market growth, underpinned by ramping volumes from our LEAP and CFM56 DFW Center of Excellence investments, as well as growth on our mid-size and super mid-size business aviation platforms and select military transport programs.

Engine Services Segment Adjusted EBITDA increased \$18.0 million, or 12.2%, to \$165.4 million for the three months ended September 30, 2025, from \$147.4 million for the prior year period. The three months ended September 30, 2024 included the positive effect of a one-time liability extinguishment of \$9.3 million. Adjusted EBITDA margin of 12.5% compared to 13.5% in the prior year period, was driven by lower margin workscope mix and the effect of ramping volumes on our new LEAP and CFM56 DFW Center of Excellence programs as they work down the learning curve. In addition, adjusted EBITDA Margin for the three months ended September 30, 2024 reflected the positive impact of the one-time liability extinguishment of \$9.3 million.

Component Repair Services

Component Repair Services segment revenue increased \$21.5 million, or 13.9%, to \$175.8 million for the three months ended September 30, 2025, compared to the prior year period. The increase was driven by growth on land and marine platforms and the contribution from the Aero Turbine acquisition, which contributed \$15.3 million in incremental year over year revenue, offset by slower growth in commercial aerospace related to input timing of certain customer volumes.

Component Repair Services Segment Adjusted EBITDA increased \$13.2 million, or 32.4%, to \$54.0 million for the three months ended September 30, 2025, from \$40.8 million for the three months ended September 30, 2024. Adjusted EBITDA margin of 30.7% compared to 26.4% in the prior year period, was driven by volume and price growth, favorable mix and margin expansion from the Aero Turbine acquisition.

Comparison of the Nine Months Ended September 30, 2025 and 2024

Engine Services

Engine Services segment revenue increased \$542.0 million, or 15.9%, to \$3,941.2 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2025, compared to the nine months ended September 30, 2024. The increase was driven by continued strong commercial aerospace end market growth, underpinned by ramping volumes from our LEAP and CFM56 DFW Center of Excellence investments, as well as growth on our mid-size and super mid-size business aviation platforms and select military transport programs.

Engine Services Segment Adjusted EBITDA increased \$66.8 million, or 14.8%, to \$517.9 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2025, from \$451.1 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2024. Adjusted EBITDA margin of 13.1% compared to 13.3% in the prior year period, were driven by lower margin workscope mix and the effect of ramping volumes on our new LEAP and CFM56 DFW Center of Excellence programs as they work down the learning curve.

Component Repair Services

Component Repair Services segment revenue increased \$92.9 million, or 21.7%, to \$521.3 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2025, compared to nine months ended September 30, 2024. The increase was driven by growth on land and marine platforms and the contribution from the Aero Turbine acquisition, which contributed \$64.5 million in incremental year over year revenue.

Component Repair Services Segment Adjusted EBITDA increased \$41.9 million, or 37.7%, to \$153.0 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2025, from \$111.1 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2024. Adjusted EBITDA margin of 29.3% compared to 25.9% in the prior year period, was driven by volume and price growth, favorable mix and margin expansion from the Aero Turbine acquisition.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

The following table summarizes select financial data relevant to our liquidity and capital resources as of September 30, 2025 and December 31, 2024:

	As of Se	As of September 30,		of December 31,	
		2025		2024	
		(in thousands)			
Cash	\$	97,503	\$	102,581	
Net working capital (total current assets less total current liabilities)		1,602,654		1,211,590	
Total debt (including current portion) (1)		2,328,842		2,231,426	
Total stockholders' equity		2,584,948		2,373,404	

⁽¹⁾ Includes unamortized discounts of \$20.0 million and \$22.5 million as of September 30, 2025 and December 31, 2024, respectively, and unamortized deferred finance charges of \$14.0 million and \$15.7 million as of September 30, 2025 and December 31, 2024, respectively.

Our principal historical cash requirements have been to fund working capital, capital expenditures and acquisitions and to service our indebtedness. As of September 30, 2025, we had \$722.8 million of available liquidity, consisting of \$97.5 million cash on hand and, \$625.3 million available under the New 2024 Revolving Credit Facility. Based on our current operations, we believe that our current sources of liquidity, including cash on hand and the New 2024 Revolving Credit Facility, are adequate to meet our cash requirements for the foreseeable future. See Note 8, "Long-Term Debt" for further discussion of the New Credit Agreement and New Senior Secured Credit Facilities. However, our ability to make scheduled payments of principal and interest, refinance our debt, comply with the financial covenants under our debt agreements and fund our other liquidity requirements will depend on our ability to generate cash in the future, which is subject to general economic, financial, competitive, legislative, regulatory and other factors that are beyond our control. Any future acquisitions, joint ventures or other similar transactions may require additional capital and there can be no assurance that any such capital will be available to us on acceptable terms, if at all.

As of September 30, 2025 and December 31, 2024, our debt outstanding consisted of the following:

	_	As of September 30, 2025	As	of December 31, 2024
		(in tho	usands)	
New 2024 Term Loan Facilities	\$	2,233,125	\$	2,250,000
New 2024 Revolving Credit Facility		110,000		_
Finance leases		18,554		18,375
Other		1,151		1,230
		2,362,830		2,269,605
Less: Current portion		(23,482)		(23,449)
Unamortized discounts		(19,991)		(22,456)
Unamortized deferred finance charges		(13,997)		(15,723)
Long-term debt	\$	2,305,360	\$	2,207,977

As of September 30, 2025, we had the following debt agreements:

 The New 2024 Term Loan Facilities under the New Credit Agreement, under which we had outstanding indebtedness in an aggregate principal amount of \$2,233.1 million, maturing on October 31, 2031.

- The \$750.0 million New 2024 Revolving Credit Facility under the New Credit Agreement, under which we had outstanding indebtedness of \$110.0 million.
- \$19.7 million in finance leases and other debt.

New Credit Agreement Covenant Compliance

The New 2024 Revolving Credit Facility is subject to a springing financial covenant, which requires us to maintain a maximum consolidated first lien net leverage ratio that is tested quarterly, at the end of any fiscal quarter, when more than 40% of the New 2024 Revolving Credit Facility (excluding, among other things, all letters of credit incurred under the New 2024 Revolving Credit Facility (whether or not cash collateralized) and adjusted cash and cash equivalents of the Borrowers and their restricted subsidiaries) is utilized on such date. See our 2024 Form 10-K, "Part II. Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations—Recent Developments—New Credit Agreement" for further discussion of the New Credit Agreement and New Senior Secured Credit Facilities.

The New Credit Agreement contains certain financial reporting covenants that require us to present periodic financial metrics to our lenders. One such financial reporting metric is Consolidated EBITDA as defined in the New Credit Agreement. The definition of Consolidated EBITDA utilized for these debt reporting covenants differs from the definition of Adjusted EBITDA presented in this Quarterly Report in that it represents Adjusted EBITDA as further adjusted for certain additional items as defined in the New Credit Agreement. The table below highlights the differences between Adjusted EBITDA presented in this Quarterly Report and Consolidated EBITDA presented to our creditors:

Increases from Adjusted EBITDA to Consolidated EBITDA		Amount
	(ir	n thousands)
Last twelve months ended September 30, 2025	\$	5,035
Last twelve months ended September 30, 2024	\$	1,541

Compliance with these covenants is essential to our ability to continue to meet our liquidity needs, as a failure to comply under the New Credit Agreement could result in a default under the New Credit Agreement and permit the senior lenders to accelerate the maturity of our indebtedness. Such an acceleration of our indebtedness would have a material adverse effect on our liquidity, including our ability to make payments on our other indebtedness and our ability to operate our business.

As of September 30, 2025, we were in compliance with the covenants in the New Credit Agreement.

Cash Flows

The following table summarizes our cash flows for the nine months ended September 30, 2025 and 2024:

		Nine Months Ended September 30,				
		2025	2024			
Consolidated statements of cash flows data:		nds)				
Net cash used in operating activities	\$	(6,304)	(32,019)			
Net cash used in investing activities		(91,107)	(184,139)			
Net cash provided by financing activities		90,924	209,111			
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash		1,409	330			
Net decrease in cash		(5,078)	(6,717)			
Cash at beginning of period		102,581	57,982			
Cash at end of period	\$	97,503	51,265			

Nine Months Ended September 30, 2025

Net cash used in operating activities for the nine months ended September 30, 2025 was \$6.3 million. The factors affecting our operating cash flows during the period included net income of \$198.8 million and non-cash charges of \$162.9 million, partially offset by a \$367.9 million change in our operating assets and liabilities. The non-cash charges primarily consisted of \$145.3 million in depreciation and amortization, \$10.0 million in stock compensation expense and \$4.9 million in amortization of deferred finance charges and discounts, and \$0.6 million of foreign exchange gain, partially offset by a \$0.8 million decrease in deferred income taxes. The increase in our net working capital was primarily due to the increase in trade working capital driven by continued growth in the business

Net cash used in investing activities for the nine months ended September 30, 2025 of \$91.1 million primarily consisted of \$66.7 million of purchases of property, plant and equipment, rental engines and \$30.0 million in payment during the current period of our licensing agreement acquired during the year ended December 2024, partially offset by \$4.3 million of proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment.

Net cash provided by financing activities for the nine months ended September 30, 2025 of \$90.9 million was primarily attributable to the proceeds from long-term debt of \$545.0 million, offset by \$452.6 million in repayments of long-term debt.

Nine Months Ended September 30, 2024

Net cash used in operating activities for the nine months ended September 30, 2024 was \$32.0 million. The factors affecting our operating cash flows during the period included net income of \$25.0 million and non-cash charges of \$145.2 million, offset by a \$202.3 million change in our operating assets and liabilities. The non-cash charges primarily consisted of \$140.0 million in depreciation and amortization, \$10.0 million in amortization of deferred finance charges and discounts, \$3.6 million loss on debt extinguishment and \$1.4 million in non-cash lease expense, partially offset by \$9.2 million decrease in deferred income taxes.

Net cash used in investing activities for the nine months ended September 30, 2024 of \$184.1 million primarily due to cash of \$114.1 million paid for the acquisition of Aero Turbine on August 23, 2024, \$70.4 million of purchases of property, plant and equipment and rental engines.

Net cash provided by financing activities for the nine months ended September 30, 2024 of \$209.1 million was primarily attributable to the proceeds from long-term debt of \$765.0 million, of which \$400.0 million was issued under the 2024 Term Loan Facilities and \$365.0 million was drawn on the ABL Credit Facility, partially offset by \$555.0 million in repayments of long-term debt, repayment of long-term agreements of \$0.5 million, and the payment of deferred financing charges of \$0.4 million.

Critical Accounting Estimates

Our financial statements are prepared in accordance with GAAP in the United States. The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States requires our management to make a number of estimates and assumptions relating to the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, revenue, expenses, and related disclosures during the period. We evaluate our significant estimates on an ongoing basis. We base our estimates on historical experience and on various other assumptions that we believe to be reasonable under the circumstances. Our actual results could differ significantly from these estimates. To the extent that there are differences between our estimates and actual results, our future financial statement presentation, results of operations, financial condition, and cash flows will be affected.

Our accounting estimates discussed below are important to the presentation of our results of operations and financial condition and require the application of judgment by our management in determining the appropriate assumptions and estimates. These assumptions and estimates are based on our previous experience, trends in the industry, the terms of existing contracts and information available from other outside sources and factors. Adjustments to our financial statements are recorded when our actual experience differs from the expected experience underlying these assumptions. These adjustments could be material if our experience is significantly different from our assumptions and estimates. Below are those policies applied in preparing our financial statements that management believes are the most dependent on the application of estimates and assumptions.

We describe our critical accounting estimates used in the preparation of our consolidated financial statements in "Part II, Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations - Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates," in our 2024 Form 10-K. We consider the following policies to be our most critical accounting policies because they involve critical accounting estimates and a significant degree of management judgment:

- · revenue recognition,
- business combinations.
- goodwill,
- inventories, and
- income taxes.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

See Note 2, "Summary of Significant Accounting Policies" to our consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this Quarterly Report for a description of recent accounting pronouncements, if any, including the expected dates of adoption and the anticipated impact on our consolidated financial statements.

ITEM 3. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

Interest Rate Risk

The New Credit Agreements are subject to interest rate risk. Borrowings under the New Senior Secured Credit Facilities bear interest at a floating rate per annum which can be, at our option:

- (a) a Term Secured Overnight Financing Rate ("SOFR") based rate for U.S. Dollar denominated loans under the Credit Facilities (subject to a 0.00% floor), plus an applicable margin ranging from (x) 2.00% to 2.25% in the case of the New 2024 Term Loan Facilities, and (y) 1.50% to 2.00% in the case of the New 2024 Revolving Credit Facility;
- (b) a EURIBOR based rate for Euro denominated loans under the New 2024 Revolving Credit Facility (subject to a 0.00% floor), plus an applicable margin ranging from 1.50% to 2.00%;
- (c) a Term CORRA based rate for Canadian Dollar denominated loans under the New 2024 Revolving Credit Facility (subject to a 0.00% floor), plus an applicable margin ranging from 1.50% to 2.00%;
- (d) a SONIA based rate for Pounds Sterling denominated loans under the New 2024 Revolving Credit Facility (subject to a 0.00% floor), plus an applicable margin ranging from 1.50% to 2.00%; and
- (e) a base rate for U.S. Dollar denominated loans under the New 2024 Credit Facilities plus an applicable margin ranging from (x) 1.00% to 1.25% in the case of the New 2024 Term Loan Facilities, and (y) 0.50% to 1.00% in the case of the New 2024 Revolving Credit Facility.

The applicable margin for the New Senior Secured Credit Facilities is subject to adjustments based on the Consolidated First Lien Net Leverage Ratio (as defined in the New Credit Agreement) as of the preceding fiscal quarter end, with (x) one 25.0 basis point ratio-based step down, in the case of the New 2024 Term Loan Facilities, and (y) two 25.0 basis point ratio-based step downs, in the case of the New 2024 Revolving Credit Facility.

On March 15, 2023, we entered into an interest rate swap contract, effective March 31, 2023, for a notional amount for \$400.0 million. The swap provides an effective fixed SOFR rate of 3.71%, maturing on December 31, 2025. Additionally, we entered into an interest rate cap contract to limit the exposure against the risk of rising interest rates. The interest rate cap contract, effective on March 31, 2023, provides a capped SOFR rate of 4.45% and matured on September 30, 2025. This interest rate cap contract began with a notional amount of \$500.0 million, increased to \$1,000.0 million on March 31, 2023, and to \$1,500.0 million on March 28, 2024. On November 14, 2023, we entered into another interest rate cap contract, effective September 30, 2025, to continue to limit the exposure of the interest rates on our variable term loans to a capped SOFR rate of 5.00% on a notional amount of \$1,500.0 million, maturing on December 31, 2026.

Inflation Risk

Inflation generally affects our costs of labor, equipment, raw materials, freight and utilities. We strive to offset these items by price increases, operating improvements and other cost-saving initiatives and through contractual provisions that allow us to pass along material and other cost increases to customers. In certain end markets, implementing price increases may be difficult and there is no assurance that we will be successful. From time to time, we may encounter difficulties in obtaining certain raw materials or components necessary for production due to supply chain constraints and logistical challenges, which may also negatively impact the pricing of materials and components sourced or used in our services.

Currency Risk

Our assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated at the period-end rate. Exchange differences arising from this translation are recorded in our consolidated statements of operations. In addition, currency exposures can arise from revenue and purchase transactions denominated in foreign currencies. Generally, transactional currency exposures are naturally hedged (i.e., revenue and expenses are approximately matched), but where appropriate, we use foreign exchange contracts. On April 7, 2025, we entered into a foreign currency contract at a notional value of GBP 39.5 million and CAD 136.5 million maturing on December 31, 2025. Approximately \$34.8 million, or 2.3%, and \$41.2 million, or 3.2%, of revenue for the three months ended September 30, 2025 and 2024, respectively, and \$107.5 million, or 2.5%., and \$120.7 million, or 3.3% of revenue for the nine months ended September 30, 2025 and 2024, respectively, was attributable to non-U.S. Dollar currencies. Gains or losses due to transactions in foreign currencies included in our consolidated statements of operations was a \$1.1 million gain and a \$0.8 million loss for the three months ended September 30, 2025 and 2024, respectively, and a \$0.6 million gain and a \$0.2 million gain for the nine months ended September 30, 2025 and 2024, respectively. A hypothetical 10% change in the relative value of the U.S. dollar to other currencies during any of the periods presented would not have had a material effect on our consolidated financial statements.

Item 4. Controls and Procedures.

Limitations on Effectiveness of Controls and Procedures

In designing and evaluating our disclosure controls and procedures, management recognizes that any controls and procedures, no matter how well designed and operated, can provide only reasonable assurance of achieving the desired control objectives. In addition, the design of disclosure controls and procedures must reflect the fact that there are resource constraints and that management is required to apply judgment in evaluating the benefits of possible controls and procedures relative to their costs.

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Our management, with the participation of our principal executive officer and principal financial officer, evaluated, as of the end of the period covered by this Quarterly Report, the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures (defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Exchange Act). Based on that evaluation, our principal executive officer and principal financial officer concluded that, as of September 30, 2025, our disclosure controls and procedures were not effective at the reasonable assurance level as a result of the material weaknesses in our internal control over financial reporting described below.

Material Weaknesses in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over financial reporting such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of our annual or interim consolidated financial statements will not be prevented or detected on a timely basis. As we have previously been a privately held company, we were not subject to the rules and regulations of the SEC regarding compliance with Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act ("Section 404"), to furnish a report by management on, among other things, the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting. As previously reported in our 2024 Form 10-K, in connection with the preparation of our consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2024, we identified material weaknesses in our internal control over financial reporting. The following are our material weaknesses:

- We did not design and maintain (i) an effective control environment commensurate with our financial reporting requirements, specifically, we did not maintain a sufficient complement of personnel with an appropriate level of internal controls and accounting knowledge, training and experience to appropriately analyze, record and disclose accounting matters timely and accurately, (ii) an effective risk assessment process at a sufficiently precise level to identify new and evolving risks of material misstatement in our financial statements and design and implement changes to our controls in response to those risks, (iii) effective monitoring controls to verify the proper and consistent functioning of our internal controls, and (iv) effective information and communication controls between various functions within the company to verify complete and accurate financial reporting. These material weaknesses contributed to the following additional material weaknesses:
- We did not design and maintain adequate written policies and procedures for accounting and financial reporting. Further, we did not design and maintain effective controls related to the period-end financing reporting process and significant account balances, including ensuring that there is adequate documented evidence of a sufficient level of management review or over complex estimates and judgmental areas of accounting and financial reporting.
- We did not design and maintain effective information technology ("IT") general controls over (i) program change
 management to ensure that program and data changes are identified, tested, authorized and implemented appropriately; (ii)
 user access controls to ensure appropriate segregation of duties and to adequately restrict user and privileged access to
 appropriate personnel; and (iii) computer operations controls to ensure that processing and transfer of data, and data
 backups and recovery are monitored.

These material weaknesses resulted in immaterial corrections, as well as immaterial unrecorded errors to various accounts and disclosures in the Company's consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2024 and condensed consolidated financial information for the quarter ended March 31, 2025. These material weaknesses could also result in a misstatement of substantially all of our account balances or disclosures that would result in a material misstatement to the annual or interim consolidated financial statements that would not be prevented or detected.

Management's Remediation Efforts

Management is committed to implementing changes to our internal control over financial reporting to ensure that the control deficiencies that contributed to the material weaknesses are remediated.

During the quarter ended September 30, 2025, we have taken the following remedial actions:

• Conducted internal controls performance and documentation training for all employees;

- Developed a comprehensive risk assessment process to assess and identify existing and developing risks and designed and implemented changes to our controls in response to those risks;
- Developed a cross-functional, quarterly alignment process to ensure all material information is communicated and disclosed, including meetings and certifications of key stakeholders throughout the business;
- Substantially enhanced our policies and procedures;

The actions above were in addition to the remedial actions completed during the previous quarters, which included:

- Hired additional personnel, with experience commensurate with our financial accounting and reporting requirements;
- Engaged external consultants with appropriate internal controls experience to assist us in further analysis of the design and implementation of certain internal controls to address the identified deficiencies;
- Designed and implemented IT general controls over IT systems that are material to the preparation of our financial statements, including change management, user access, and computer operations controls.

The process of implementing an effective financial reporting system is a continuous effort that requires us to anticipate and react to changes in our business and the economic and regulatory environments and to expend significant resources to maintain a financial reporting system that is adequate to satisfy our reporting obligations. As we continue to evaluate and take actions to improve our internal control over financial reporting, we may take additional actions to address control deficiencies or modify certain of the remediation measures described above.

We believe the above actions will be effective in remediating parts of the material weaknesses described above, and we will continue to devote significant time and attention to these remedial efforts. The material weaknesses cannot be considered remediated until the applicable remedial controls operate for a sufficient period of time and management has concluded that these controls are operating effectively.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

We are taking actions to remediate the material weaknesses relating to our internal controls over financial reporting, as described above. Except as discussed above, there were no changes in our internal control over financial reporting (as that term is defined in Rules 13a-15(d) or 15d-15(d) of the Exchange Act), that materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.

PART II. OTHER INFORMATION

Item 1. Legal Proceedings

We are and may become involved in certain legal proceedings arising in the normal course of our business. These proceedings primarily involve commercial claims, product liability claims, personal injury claims and worker's compensation claims. Consistent with GAAP, we have established reserves when the liability is probable, and the loss is capable of being reasonably estimated. We cannot predict the outcome of these lawsuits, legal proceedings and claims with certainty. For further discussion please see Note 11, "Commitments and Contingencies" to our consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this Quarterly Report.

Item 1A. Risk Factors.

In addition to the other information set forth in this Quarterly Report, you should carefully consider the factors discussed under "Part I, Item 1A. Risk Factors" in our 2024 Form 10-K. These factors could materially adversely affect our business, financial condition, liquidity, results of operations and capital position, and could cause our actual results to differ materially from our historical results or the results contemplated by any forward-looking statements contained in this Quarterly Report. There have been no material changes from the risk factors disclosed under the heading "Risk Factors" in our 2024 Form 10-K.

Item 2. Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds.

(a) Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities.

None.

(b) Use of Proceeds.

None

(c) Purchases of equity securities by the issuer and affiliated purchasers

None.

Item 3. Defaults Upon Senior Securities.

None.

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures.

Not applicable.

Item 5. Other Information.

(a) Disclosure in lieu of reporting on a Current Report on Form 8-K.

None

(b) Material changes to the procedures by which security holders may recommend nominees to the board of directors.

None.

(c) Insider Trading Arrangements and Policies.

The following table describes any contracts, instructions or written plans for the sale or purchase of our securities adopted, amended or terminated by our directors or executive officers during the three months ended September 30, 2025, each of which is intended to satisfy the affirmative defense conditions of Rule 10b5-1(c).

Name and Title	Date of Adoption of Rule 10b5- 1 Trading Plan	Scheduled Expiration Date of Rule 10b5-1 Trading Plan	Aggregate Number of Securities to be Purchased or Sold
Russell Ford	8/18/2025	11/18/2026	Covers the sale of up to
Chief Executive Officer			1,006,955 shares of common
			stock by RSSA Ford Family
			LLC

Exhibit Index

Exhibit Number	Description	Form	File No.	Exhibit	Filing Date
3.1	Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of	8-K	001-42298	3.1	10/3/2024
	StandardAero, Inc.				
3.2	Amended and Restated Bylaws of StandardAero, Inc.	8-K	001-42298	3.2	10/3/2024
31.1*	Certification of Principal Executive Officer Pursuant to Rules				
	13a-14(a) and 15d-14(a) under the Securities Exchange Act of				
	1934, as Adopted Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-				
	Oxley Act of 2002.				
31.2*	Certification of Principal Financial Officer Pursuant to Rules				
	13a-14(a) and 15d-14(a) under the Securities Exchange Act of				
	1934, as Adopted Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-				
	Oxley Act of 2002.				
32.1**	Certification of Principal Executive Officer Pursuant to 18				
	U.S.C. Section 1350, as Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of				
	the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.				
32.2**	Certification of Principal Financial Officer Pursuant to 18				
	U.S.C. Section 1350, as Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of				
	the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.				
101	Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema with Embedded				
	Linkbase Documents				
101.SCH	Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema with embedded				
	Linkbase documents				
104	Inline XBRL for the cover page of this Quarterly Report on				
	Form 10-Q, included in the Exhibit 101 Inline XBRL				
	Document Set.				

^{*} Filed herewith

^{**} Furnished herewith

SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, the Registrant has duly caused this Report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

StandardAero, Inc.

Date: November 10, 2025 By: /s/Russell Ford

Russell Ford

Chief Executive Officer (Principal Executive Officer)

Date: November 10, 2025 By: /s/ Daniel Satterfield

Daniel Satterfield Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial Officer)

- I, Russell Ford, certify that:
- 1. I have reviewed this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of StandardAero, Inc.;
- Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a
 material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such
 statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;
- Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;
- 4. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) for the registrant and have:
 - (a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;
 - (b) [omitted];
 - (c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and
 - (d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant's internal control over financial reporting; and
- 5. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):
 - (a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and
 - (b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting.

Date: November 10, 2025	By:	/s/ Russell Ford
	_	Russell Ford
		Chief Executive Officer

- I, Daniel Satterfield, certify that:
- 1. I have reviewed this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of StandardAero, Inc.;
- Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a
 material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such
 statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;
- Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;
- 4. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) for the registrant and have:
 - (a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;
 - (b) [omitted];
 - (c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and
 - (d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant's internal control over financial reporting; and
- 5. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):
 - (a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and
 - (b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting.

Date: November 10, 2025	By:	/s/ Daniel Satterfield	
		Daniel Satterfield	
		Chief Financial Officer	

In connection with the Report of StandardAero, Inc. (the "Company") on Form 10-Q for the period ended September 30, 2025 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the "Report"), I certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursuant to § 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

- (1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and
- (2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

Date: November 10, 2025	By:	/s/ Russell Ford
		Russell Ford
		Chief Executive Officer

In connection with the Annual Report of StandardAero, Inc. (the "Company") on Form 10-Q for the period ended September 30, 2025 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the "Report"), I certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursuant to § 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

- (1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and
- (2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

Date: November 10, 2025	By:	/s/ Daniel Satterfield
		Daniel Satterfield
		Chief Financial Officer